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which will focus on delivering a combined club and schools competitions for under 15-18s, a coach development manager,
as well as a Coterie as part of the Positive Rugby Foundation to help fund the new initiatives in area. Additional support
has also been identified to support Pacific Islands and multicultural rugby tournaments in Western Sydney to deliver more
structured competitions for players, volunteers and fans.

NSW Waratahs community engagement. The NSW Waratahs squad have continued to support community rugby right

2 across the State, with players and coaches contributing to over 700 appearances. From coaching clinics, Waratahs camps, schools
L}

visits, charity commitments, coach the coach sessions, meet and greets - our players value the opportunity to engage with fans and
R E P O R T rugby participants. With close to 80% of our squad hailing from New South Wales, our players recognise the importance of giving

back to the grassroots that supported their career.

Schools Relationships Managers. Connecting to schools to unify our pathways programs was recognised a key priority and

CHAIRMAN & CEO’S REPORT

Welcome to the 2018 NSW Rugby Union (NSWRU) Annual Report in what has
been other busy year for rugby across New South Wales.

thanks for funding through the Positive Rugby Foundation Primary and Secondary Schools Relationship Managers were appointed
with new roles to focus on the retention and growth school rugby.

Redefining community priorities. Throughout 2018 NSWRU worked with Rugby Australia to redefine strategies New

Now 12 months on from the finalisation of the governance reforms agreed to at the _ _ _ o
South Wales could implement across the State that would contribute to overall national objectives.

2017 AGM, NSW Rugby Union is already starting to see benefits in how the sport is
delivered within our State. While we are still in the infancy stages of these governance
reforms, the signs are positive and we look forward to building on the strong position we
have created for rugby from our clubs and grassroots competitions through to our elite

For the Love of Rugby. The brand campaign was launched in 2018 and was designed to celebrate all aspects of rugby
that fans and participants love. It is a campaign that connects the whole game and is marketed through juniors, country,
seniors, Waratahs and women’s programs. To kick start the campaign a six-part content series was launched that profiled
junior rugby players, a NSW Waratahs fan, NSW Waratah legend Tim Gavin, Camden volunteer group ‘chain gang’, NSW

Waratahs women’s players, NSW Waratah Ned Hanigan who is product of the NSWRU pathways program.

programs.

As an organisation NSWRU is committed to ensuring that as a sport we live by our values or

care, connect and unify for the good of the game in our State. At all levels of NSWRU, we have Growing the dlglgal footprint. Increasing NSWRU digital footprint allows the sport to connect to current
fans, players, participants as well as attract new audiences to the game. In 2018, we achieved the highest amount

clear objectives designed to ensure we live those values. L . .
of pageviews on our website since the 2014 and 2015 seasons. With amore consistent content throughout
the whole year, focused on all of rugby, we reached 380,000 users visiting our website with an average of 2
Collectively each department has used the below strategic pillars to ensure that rugby as a whole minutes and 23 seconds spent viewing each page.
continues to grow. The five strategic pillars are: Our social media accounts in Instagram and Twitter saw considerable increases of followers (72,505 and
52,525 respectively, while Facebook remained even in it’s follower numbers.

Inspire and align the community (including governance reforms) The demographic engaged on our digital channels are:

Creating strong development pathways

Ensure NSW Waratahs are successful Female
Diversify revenue streams Web 20.6%
Grow attendance at rugby. Facebook 22%
Instagram 22.0%
Twitter 41%

ACTIVATE & INTEGRATE THE COMMUNITY

Connecting to our clubs and grassroots is a key driver for our organisation. Creating and delivering quality competitions, programs
and creating opportunities that further build capacity and positive experiences for our clubs, coaches, volunteers and players, is key to
our success.

GOVERNANCE REFORM

A year on from the agreement to bring together the community and professional

The focus areas are on school and juniors, female rugby, development of volunteers and coaches and the development of aspirational : :
side of the sport into one operating model

pathways.

The move towards Advisory Councils, country, metro and elite, are designed to serve

Registered clubs players in XV remains steady, with 36,711 registered players. There has been a strong growth in Sevens players, with as an intermediary between the Board and affiliates to provide the co-ordination of

20,000 participants across the State across numerous tournaments and club organized events. Most significantly, the figures of v .
o - o ) ’ strategy and operational issues across all stakeholders.
those competing in regular 7’s competitions at both the junior and senior levels has doubled to 3,000, with the biggest growth

i ’s divisions. ! : ! ! ..
demographic in the women’s divisions The mix provides greater role clarity, encourages collaboration and allows the limited

resources within the sport to come together in a more effective way to improve the whole
. i A game.
We have seen strong results in terms of engagement and key initiatives we have been able to deliver includes the below.
) While there are still strides to be made, by having one Board to help drive whole of game
Creation of the ‘Hubs’ model. After the successful launch of the Northern Beaches Hub in 2017, that has already
delivered positive results for the region including increased junior registrations, NSWRU this year has also taken steps to
introduce a Western Sydney Hub. The Hub model is about identifying the different needs of specific regions across a host
of areas from clubs, volunteers, referees, schools, juniors and seniors - and tailoring rugby programs and initiatives to drive
better outcomes. The long term goal is to have Hubs established across the State.

solutions, has already started to see positive results achieved. The collaborative way in which
the sport is able to be administered his helping to facilitate growth, development and success of
rugby in New South Wales from the grassroots to the elite level.

Western Sydney Action Plan. A new Western Sydney action plan that will see the development of a new ‘Hub’
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CREATING STRONG DEVELOPMENT PATHWAYS

Super W: New South Wales Women’s team took out the inaugural Buildcorp Super W title in a nail biting final against rivals

Creating strong pathways within New South Wales doesn’t just apply to players, with NSWRU Queensland at home at Allianz Stadium. Impressive the NSW team were undefeated throughout the season, dominating the
committed building development opportunities for coaches, clubs, volunteers and referees. the competition and showcasing the impressive talent and depth within the women’s XV ranks.
The NSW Waratahs Academy, continues to work with the next generation of rugby talent to
B S S GROW ATTENDANCE AT NSW WARATAHS HOME GAMES
deliver the “‘Waratah Way’ which has six pillars for player development including physical,
technical, tactical, mental, leadership, and holistic. Growing attendance at NSW Waratahs home games is of significant importance. We know across Super Rugby in Australia, and in

fact across many markets of Super Rugby, attendance numbers are declining and efforts need to be made to reconnect to rugby fans.
Both Rugby Australia and NSW Rugby Union have recognised the importance of investing
into our academies, to foster talent within the game. In New South Wales especially, Under the new governance model, NSW Rugby Union is aiming to take a whole of sport approach to getting more fans attending NSW
where there is increased choice of sports for young people to participate in, rugby

Waratahs games, including boosting initiatives such as free Junior Membership for all NSW registered junior players, working directly with

needs to have the strategies in place to not only identify talent but ensure that talent is regions and affiliates to develop ticket incentives as well as national partnerships to drive public awareness.

developed and provided a clear pathway.
During 2018 NSW Rugby Union started to put in place strategies for home games for the duration of the Allianz Stadium re-build.
Working collaboratively with our proud partners at the SCG Trust, NSWRU looked at the re-build period as an opportunity to take
Super Rugby matches around the State to connect with fans for 2019 and beyond. These strategies saw agreements developed
with Brookvale Oval, Newcastle City Council and the new Western Sydney stadium.

DIVERSIFY REVENUE STREAMS

2018 was a historic year for NSW Rugby Union with the public launch of the Positive Rugby Foundation, which heralds
a new avenue of funding for the game in the State. The NSWRU Board and management recognised the importance

Some of the key initiatives delivered throughout the year across numerous areas:

Schools. Recognised as a vital part of the player develop pathways, NSWRU continues to
work with primary and high schools to ensure talent is fostered and opportunities created

for students. Throughout 2018 some of the new programs launched including a joint venture
between the NSW Sports High Schools Association and NSW Rugby, introduction of the Inter-
Association Schools model whereby GPS, CAS and ISA schools played each other prior to the

traditional association matches and development of a Australian National Schools Strategy Elite Youth

that will see a move towards State based Academy U18 teams. of being financially self-reliant while at the same time growing the game across the State, investing in community
programmes and supporting the health and wellbeing of the community.

Coaches. Coaches in any sport play an integral part in helping to lay the foundation and plotting the

success of a team, and NSW Rugby is working around the clock to develop our coaching pathways further. The creation of the Positive Rugby Foundation (PRF) provides a fantastic opportunity for NSWRU to explore

fundraising opportunities through a range of different ways, including Government, Philanthropic, Corporate and

Private.

Kick starting the regular season, 20 Level One Foundation courses across four weekends around the Sydney
and country regions with close to 50 coaches attending the training. Additionally, NSW Waratahs Coaching
team are committed to delivering ‘coach the coach’ sessions across the State designed to equip club coaches
with the processes and skill development that are being coached at the high performance end of the sport and
can be adapted at the Club level.

The aim of the PRF is to generate additional income to fund community rugby activities. The key areas for
funds to be invested in include Country and Regional development, Elite Youth Development, Indigenous
Programmes and initiatives, Schools and Juniors, Western Sydney Development and Women’s Rugby.

NRC. NSW Rugby announced in 2018 that the Sydney Rays and NSW Country represented the State in the NRC to
align to the organisation’s pathway development system. NSWRU managed licenses for both teams. The NRC is distinctly
different to club rugby, it’s an intense 9-week competition in a high performance environment, which is the best for

Thank you to all our Coterie Members who signed up to our Schools and Country coteries to kick start
the Positive Rugby Foundation. Your contribution is already delivering outcomes in a positive way for
development programme for players and support staff. rugby across our State.
Women. The launch of the Super W competition for 2018 saw NSWRU deliver an open trials in bid to select a team that
would represent the State in this national competition. The new elite competition provides NSWRU the opportunity to
further work with players to provide additional high performance opportunities for elite players. The Super W competition
complements other women’s programs already on offer across New South Wales including the Jack Scott Cup as well as the
Chikarovski Cup, which is aligned to the NRC competition.

SPONSORSHIP.

We are proud of the strong sponsorship portfolio we have been able to build and those
partners that continue to support us over a number of years. We must acknowledge our
Principal Partner Daikin, who's long standing partnership with the sport is valued.

Leading global financial services provider, CMC Markets, announced in 2018 its continued
Gen Blue: As part of the well established Gen Blue programs, in 2018 NSWRU launched a new initiative that looked to further build off-
field support for NSW Rugby’s Generation Blue players. Parents and guardians of the next generation athletes came together at NSWRU
headquarters with the programme’s strong emphasis on producing better players and people. The sessions bought together players
aged 16,17 and 18 to educate them in the high performance ways of the NSW Waratahs as part of our plan to produce future Waratahs
players.

support of the NSW Waratahs, signing on as a major partner for the fifth consecutive
year. The enduring partnership between CMC Markets and the NSW Waratahs is
a valuable alignment for both brands, sharing similar core values such as heritage,
teamwork, accountability and strategy.

NSWRU rounded out the year with an exciting announcement of Japanese giants NEC
Under 19 Rugby Championships. The inaugural competition saw two New South Wales teams selected, NSW Country and
Sydney with coaches, manages and support staff selected from Sydney Colts competition and school rugby teams.

Networks and System Integration Corporation (NESIC)is on board for 2019 as Official
Partner of the NSW Waratahs and NSW Rugby. Asia, and particularly Japan, is one of
rugby’s emerging markets and one of NSWRU key priorities is to expand the NSW Waratahs
brand in that region, with the NESIC partnership helping to achieve this.

ENSURE NSW WARATAHS ARE SUCCESSFUL

In 2018, New South Wales men’s and women’s teams impressed on the international and domestic stage.

Iconic Australian food brand joined the NSW rugby family in 0218 with Four’N Twenty
(announcing an exclusive partnership with the NSWRU as the Official Referee Partner of NSW

Rugby.

Super Rugby: It was a stand out year for the NSW Waratahs in 2018, an impressive turn around from the previous year.

The NSW Waratahs finished top of the Australian Conference and progressed through to the Super Rugby Semi Final, the

first time since 2015, Statistically the team delivered impressive results and managed to finish out the year in fourth place.

In Super W NSWRU partners step up to the table. PM-Partners, a leading Australian project
management consultancy, was proud to sponsor the New South Wales Women’s rugby team in
the Super W rugby competition. Principal partner and front of jersey sponsor Daikin and major
The turn around from previous season is a testament to the players, coaches and support staff who were determined to
ensure NSW Waratahs were back to their winning ways.

partners Ray White, People & Culture Strategies and the University of NSW also supported the team
throughout the competition.
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Government Relations. The appointment of a Government Relations Manager has allowed for
a dedicated resource to be working with not on State Government departments, but also to

help Clubs and regions to lobby their local government agencies to increase funding into the
community.

Most significantly in 2018 was the announcement of $20-million investment from the New
South Wales Government into the development of a new home/s for rugby and programmes
to develop the sport in New South Wales. The facility will be the epicentre for the State’s
rugby community and a hub for more than just the development of the game.

With a strong emphasis on providing services in health and wellbeing to the
communities in NSW, the new facility is vital for the ongoing growth of rugby. The
organisation’s official charity, the NSW Positive Rugby Foundation, will be based at the

facility as part of a charity hub that will be key components of a new concept for rugby in
the future.

The goal is to create a home for the whole of the game, from administrators, charity partners,
rugby supporters, members and our NSW representative teams.

COMMERIAL

Stadiums deal. Anew interimagreement between New South Wales Rugby Union and Sydney
Cricket Grounds was negotiated during 2018 and it set to provide long termdisruption support for
the sport while the new stadium is beingredeveloped. Not only does this provide a permanent home
base for NSW Waratahs at the SCG in the short term, it also allows NSWRU to negotiate deals with other
stadiums for games that are not played at the SCG to provide opportunities to connect with different
marketplaces across the State.

Strategic partnerships.Japan continues to be an important market for NSWRU from acommercial standpoint.
In 2018 NSWRU entered intoanew partnership with NEC Networks & System Integration Corporation (NESIC),in
addition to formalising a new student exchange program with Kwansei Gakuin University and UNSW to deliver a
Japanese educational week for sports management students.

FINANCIAL

New South Wales Rugby Union & NSW Waratahs Ltd delivered a consolidated operating deficit of $547k for reporting
period ending31December 2018. Contributing factorsinclude poor 2017 on field performances in Super Rugby, negative
media sentiment around the Super Rugby changes including changes to the format and the cutting of a team within the
Australian conference.

NSWRU is forecasting a positive net position of $6kfor 2019, thanks to initiatives taken during 2018 which will reduce the reliance
on traditional revenue streams such as membership, ticketing and sponsorship and diversify income streams.

Some of the major initiatives that will help see NSWRU move back into a positive position includes the launch of the Positive Rugby
Foundationto directly support grassroots programs; expanding the Government Relations portfolio to continue to maximise the
funding grants available to rugby both at a State level as well as assisting Clubs/regions; savings will start to come to fruition from

the new headquartersin Daceyville, with the bold decision to move saving on rental costs previously incurred by the sport;and the new
stadium disruption agreementwith the Sydney Cricket Ground will help minimise losses for the duration of the home ground rebuild

Long term strategies to diversify revenue streams around stadium deals, the Positive Rugby Foundation and new facilities funding,
provide confidence in bringing NSWRU back to a positive financial position.
In closing, we want to thank the NSWRU Board and staff who passionately live our values and goals and work tireless to better the

game of rugby in our State.

To the extended rugby family, our players, coaches, club administrators, referees, volunteers, parents and schools, thank you for
your participation and contribution to rugby and we look forward to seeing you around the grounds in 2019.

ROGER DAVIS ANDREW HORE
CHAIRMAN CEO
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3A.
NSW WARATAHS

MATCH 1

NSW WARATAHS LINEUP RESERVES NSW WARATAHS LINEUP RESERVES

24/02/2018 10/03/2018
1. TOM ROBERTSON 16. HUGH ROACH 1. TOM ROBERTSON 17. HARRY JOHNSON-HOLMES
2. DAMIEN FITZPATRICK 17. HARRY JOHNSON-HOLMES 2. DAMIEN FITZPATRICK 18. KALIVATI TAWAKE
3. PATRICK RYAN 18. SHAMBECKLER VUI 3. PATRICK RYAN 19. NICK PALMER
NSW WARATAHS \ STORMERS 4. TOM STANIFORTH 19. NICK PALMER NSW WARATAHS \ JAGUARES 4. NED HANIGAN 20. WILL MILLER
5. ROB SIMMONS 20. JED HOLLOWAY 5. TOM STANIFORTH 21. NICK DUFFY
SCORERS M Hooper, I Folau, D Fitzpatrick, 6. NED HANIGAN 21. MITCH SHORT SCORERS JHolloway, C Rona, N Palmer, | 6. MICHAEL WELLS 22. BRYCE HEGARTY
N Hanigan tries; B Foley 4 goals, 2 7. MICHAEL HOOPER (C) 22. BRYCE HEGARTY Folau tries; B Foley 4 goals 7. MICHAEL HOOPER (C) 23. TAQELE NAIYARAVORO
pen.goals
8. MICHAEL WELLS 23. ALEX NEWSOME REFEREE Mike Fraser 8. JED HOLLOWAY 25. TOLU LATU
REFEREE Angus Gardner 9. JAKE GORDON 9. JAKE GORDON

10. BERNARD FOLEY (VC) 10. BERNARD FOLEY (VC)

11. ANDREW KELLAWAY VENUE Estadio Jose Amalfitani, 11. CURTIS RONA

VENUE Allianz Stadium Buenos Aires

KURTLEY BEALE
Sydney e

12. KURTLEY BEALE

13. LALAKAI FOKET! CROWD 5,203 13. LALAKAI FOKET!

CROWD 11,087

14. CURTIS RONA 14. ALEXNEWSOME

15. ISRAEL FOLAU 15. ISRAEL FOLAU

MATCH 2
RESERVES

NSW WARATAHS LINEUP NSW WARATAHS LINEUP RESERVES
03/03/2018 18/03/2018
1. TOM ROBERTSON 16. HUGH ROACH 1. TOM ROBERTSON 16. HUGH ROACH
2. DAMIEN FITZPATRICK 17. HARRY JOHNSON-HOLMES 2. DAMIEN FITZPATRICK 17. HARRY JOHNSON-HOLMES
3. PATRICK RYAN 18. KALIVATI TAWAKE 3. SEKOPE KEPU 18. PATRICK RYAN
NSW WARATAHS v SHARKS 4. NED HANIGAN 19. NICK PALMER NSW WARATAHS v MELBOURNE 4. NED HANIGAN 19. TOM STANIFORTH

5. TOM STANIFORTH 20. WILL MILLER REBELS 5. ROB SIMMONS 20. WILL MILLER

SCORERS JGordon, M Hooper, M Short tries;
6. MICHAEL WELLS 21. MITCH SHORT . 6. MICHAEL WELLS 21. MICK SNOWDEN

B Foley 3 goals, pen.goal SCORERS T Naiyaravoro 2, L Foketi, R

7. MICHAEL HOOPER (C) 22. BRYCE HEGARTY Simmons, M Short, B Hegarty tries; 7. MICHAEL HOOPER (C) 22. ALEX NEWSOME
8. JED HOLLOWAY 23. ALEX NEWSOME B Foley 6 goals, 3 pen.goals 8. JED HOLLOWAY 23. TAQELE NAIYARAVORO

REFEREE Jaco Peyper
9. JAKE GORDON REFEREE Brendan Pickerill 9. MITCH SHORT

10. BERNARD FOLEY (VC) 10. BERNARD FOLEY (VC)

VENUE King’s Park, Durban 1 CURTIE RONA 1. CURTIS RONA

12, KURTLEY BEALE VENUE Allianz Stadium 12, KURTLEY BEALE

Sydney

13. LALAKAI FOKETI 13. LALAKAI FOKETI

CROWD 14,143 14. ANDREW KELLAWAY 14, ISRAEL FOLAU

15. ISRAEL FOLAU 11’652 15. BRYCE HEGARTY
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MATCH 5
NSW WARATAHS LINEUP RESERVES

NSW WARATAHS LINEUP RESERVES

31/03/2018

NSW WARATAHS

v BRUMBIES

SCORERS

REFEREE

VENUE

CROWD

MATCH 6

07/04/2018

NSW WARATAHS

T Naiyaravoro 2 tries; B Foley goal,
4 pen.goals

Nic Berry

GIO Stadium, Canberra

13,515

v SUNWOLVES

SCORERS

REFEREE

VENUE

CROWD

2018 NSW RUGBY UNION ANNUAL REPORT

J Gordon 2, C Rona, W Miller, B
Hegarty, M Hooper, T Naiyaravoro
tries; B Foley 6 goals, pen.goal

Angus Gardner

Prince Chichibu Memorial
Stadium, Tokyo

9,707

1. TOM ROBERTSON

2. DAMIEN FITZPATRICK
3. SEKOPE KEPU

4. NED HANIGAN

5. ROB SIMMONS

6. MICHAEL WELLS

7. MICHAEL HOOPER (C)
8. JED HOLLOWAY

9. JAKE GORDON

10. BERNARD FOLEY (VC)
1. TAQELE NAIYARAVORO
12. KURTLEY BEALE

13. CURTIS RONA

14. ISRAEL FOLAU

15. BRYCE HEGARTY

NSW WARATAHS LINEUP

1. TOM ROBERTSON

2. DAMIEN FITZPATRICK
3. SEKOPE KEPU

4. NED HANIGAN

5. ROB SIMMONS

6. WILL MILLER

7. MICHAEL HOOPER (C)
8. MICHAEL WELLS

9. JAKE GORDON

10. BERNARD FOLEY (VC)
1. TAQELE NAIYARAVORO
12. KURTLEY BEALE

13. CURTIS RONA

14. ALEX NEWSOME

15. ISRAEL FOLAU

16. HUGH ROACH
17. HARRY JOHNSON-HOLMES
18. PATRICK RYAN

19. TOM STANIFORTH

20. WILL MILLER

21. MITCH SHORT

22. LALAKAI FOKETI

23. ALEXNEWSOME

RESERVES

16. HUGH ROACH
17. HARRY JOHNSON-HOLMES
18. PATRICK RYAN

19. TOM STANIFORTH

20. JED HOLLOWAY

21. MITCH SHORT

22. LALAKAI FOKETI

23. CAMERON CLARK

14/04/2018

NSW WARATAHS

v QUEENSLAND
REDS

SCORERS

REFEREE

VENUE

CROWD

20/04/2018

NSW WARATAHS

T Naiyaravoro 2, J Gordon, H
Johnson-Holmes tries; B Foley 4
goals, 3 pen.goals

Angus Gardner

Sydney Cricket Ground

15,648

MATCH 8

v LIONS

SCORERS

REFEREE

VENUE

Mike Fraser

Allianz Stadium
Sydney

10,614

1. TOM ROBERTSON

2. DAMIEN FITZPATRICK
3. SEKOPE KEPU

4. NED HANIGAN

5. ROB SIMMONS

6. WILL MILLER

7. MICHAEL HOOPER (C)
8. MICHAEL WELLS

9. JAKE GORDON

10. BERNARD FOLEY (VC)
1. TAQELE NAIYARAVORO
12. KURTLEY BEALE

13. CURTIS RONA

14. ALEX NEWSOME

15. BRYCE HEGARTY

NSW WARATAHS LINEUP

1. TOM ROBERTSON

2. DAMIEN FITZPATRICK
3. SEKOPE KEPU

4. TOME STANIFORTH

5. ROB SIMMONS

6. NED HANIGAN

7. MICHAEL HOOPER (C)
8. MICHAEL WELLS

9. JAKE GORDON

10. BERNARD FOLEY (VC)
1. TAQELE NAIYARAVORO
12. KURTLEY BEALE

13. CURTIS RONA

14. ALEX NEWSOME

15. BRYCE HEGARTY

16. HUGH ROACH

17. HARRY JOHNSON-HOLMES
18. PATRICK RYAN

19. TOM STANIFORTH

20. JED HOLLOWAY

21. NICK PHIPPS

22. LALAKAI FOKETI

23. CAMERON CLARK

RESERVES

16. HUGH ROACH

17. HARRY JOHNSON-HOLMES
18. PATRICK RYAN

19. NICK PALMER

20. JED HOLLOWAY

21. WILL MILLER

22. NICK PHIPPS

23. LALAKAI FOKETI




MATCH 9 CH 11

NSW WARATAHS LINEUP RESERVES NSW WARATAHS LINEUP RESERVES

05/05/2018 1. TOM ROBERTSON 16. HUGH ROACH 19/05/2018 1. TOM ROBERTSON 16. TOLU LATU
2. DAMIEN FITZPATRICK 17. HARRY JOHNSON-HOLMES 2. DAMIEN FITZPATRICK 17. HARRY JOHNSON-HOLMES
3. SEKOPE KEPU 18. PATRICK RYAN 3. SEKOPE KEPU 18. CHAMBECKLER VUI
NSW WARATAHS v BLUES 4. NED HANIGAN 19. TOM STANIFORTH NSW WARATAHS \' HIGHLANDERS 4. TOM STANIFORTH 19. RYAN MCCAULEY
5. ROB SIMMONS 20. JED HOLLOWAY 5. ROB SIMMONS 20. JED HOLLOWAY
SCORERS D Fitzpatrick, S Kepu, M Hooper 6. WILL MILLER 21. NICK PHIPPS SCORERS T Naiyaravoro 2, | Folau 2, L Foketi, 6. WILL MILLER 21. NICK PHIPPS
tries; B Foley 3 goals 7. MICHAEL HOOPER (C) 22. CURTIS RONA C Rona tries; B Foley 4 goals, pen. 7. MICHAEL HOOPER (C) 22. LALAKAI FOKETI
REFEREE Jaco Peyper 8. MICHAEL WELLS 24. BRYCE HEGARTY godl 8. MICHAEL WELLS 23. BRYCE HEGARTY
9. JAKE GORDON REFEREE Brendan Pcikerill 9. JAKE GORDON
10. BERNARD FOLEY (VC) 10. BERNARD FOLEY (VC)
VENUE Brookvale Oval 11. TAQELE NAIYARAVORO 11. TAQELE NAIYARAVORO
12. KURTLEY BEALE VENUE Allianz Stadium, Sydney 12. KURTLEY BEALE
CROWD 13,013 13. LALAKAI FOKETI 13. CURTIS RONA

14. CAMERON CLARK CROWD 12,308 14. CAMERON CLARK

15. ISRAEL FOLAU 15. ISRAEL FOLAU

MATCH 10 MA 12
RESERVES

NSW WARATAHS LINEUP NSW WARATAHS LINEUP RESERVES
1. TOM ROBERTSON 16. HUGH ROACH 1. TOM ROBERTSON 16. TOLU LATU
2. DAMIEN FITZPATRICK 17. HARRY JOHNSON-HOLMES 2. DAMIEN FITZPATRICK 17. HARRY JOHNSON-HOLMES
3. SEKOPE KEPU 18. SHAMBECKLER VUI 3. SEKOPE KEPU 18. PATRICK RYAN
NSW WARATAHS v CRUSADERS 4. NED HANIGAN 19. TOM STANIFORTH NSW WARATAHS v CHIEFS 4. TOM STANIFORTH 19. JED HOLLOWAY
5. ROB SIMMONS 20. JED HOLLOWAY 5. ROB SIMMONS 20. BRAD WILKIN
SCORERS CClark, T Naiyaravoro, | Folau, C SCORERS C Clark, C Rona, K Beale tries; B
. 6. WILL MILLER 21. JAKE GORDON 6. WILL MILLER 21. JAKE GORDON
Rona tries; B Foley 3 goals, pen.goal Foley 3 goals, 2 pen.goals
7. MICHAEL HOOPER (C) 22. LALAKAI FOKETI 7. MICHAEL HOOPER (C) 22. LALAKAI FOKETI
: 8. MICHAEL WELLS 23. BRYCE HEGARTY 8. MICHAEL WELLS 23. BRYCE HEGARTY
REFEREE Ben O’Keefe REFEREE Glen Jackson
9. NICK PHIPPS 9. NICK PHIPPS

10. BERNARD FOLEY (VC) 10. BERNARD FOLEY (VC)

VENUE AMI Stadium, Christchurch 1. TAQELE NAIYARAVORO
12. KURTLEY BEALE

VENUE FMG Stadium, Hamilton 1. TAQELE NAIYARAVORO
12. KURTLEY BEALE

13. CURTIS RONA 13. CURTIS RONA
CROWD 11,597 14. CAMERON CLARK 10,747 14. CAMERON CLARK

15. ISRAEL FOLAU 15. ISRAEL FOLAU

2018 NSW RUGBY UNION ANNUAL REPORT




MATCH 13 MATCH 15

NSW WARATAHS LINEUP RESERVES NSW WARATAHS LINEUP RESERVES

02/06/2018 29/06/2018
1. TOM ROBERTSON 16. TOLU LATU 1. TOM ROBERTSON 16. TOLU LATU
2. DAMIEN FITZPATRICK 17. HARRY JOHNSON-HOLMES 2. DAMIEN FITZPATRICK 17. HARRY JOHNSON-HOLMES
3. SEKOPE KEPU 18. SHAMBECKLER VUI 3. SEKOPE KEPU 18. PATRICK RYAN
NSW WARATAHS v QUEENSLAND 4. JED HOLLOWAY 19. TOM STANIFORTH NSW WARATAHS \' MELBOURNE 4. JED HOLLOWAY 19. TOM STANIFORTH
REDS 5. ROB SIMMONS 20. BRAD WILKIN REBELS 5. ROB SIMMONS (VC) 20. BRAD WILKIN
SCORERS [Folau2, C Rona, M Wells, T 6. WILL MILLER 21. JAKE GORDON SCORERS T Naiyaravoro, W Miller, N Hanigan, 6. NED HANIGAN 21. JAKE GORDON
Naiyaravoro, N Phipps, J Gordon, C 7. MICHAEL HOOPER (C) 22. LALAKAI FOKETI B Foley tries; B Foley 4 goals, pen. 7. WILL MILLER 22. IRAE SIMONE
Clark tries; B Foley 6 goals goal
8. MICHAEL WELLS 23. BRYCE HEGARTY 8. MICHAEL WELLS 23. ALEX NEWSOME
REFEREE Angus Gardner 9. NICK PHIPPS REFEREE Nic Berry 9. NICK PHIPPS

10. BERNARD FOLEY (VC) 10. BERNARD FOLEY (C)

11. TAQELE NAIYARAVORO 11. TAQELE NAIYARAVORO
VENUE Suncorp Stadium

Brisbane

KURTLEY BEALE VENUE Allianz Stadium KURTLEY BEALE
12 Sydney 12

13. CURTIS RONA 13. CURTIS RONA

CROWD 14,452 14, CAMERON CLARK CROWD 9,208 14. CAMERON CLARK

15. ISRAEL FOLAU 15. BRYCE HEGARTY

MATCH 14
RESERVES

NSW WARATAHS LINEUP NSW WARATAHS LINEUP RESERVES
1. HARRY JOHNSON-HOLMES 16. DAMIEN FITZPATRICK 1. TOM ROBERTSON 16. TOLU LATU
2. HUGH ROACH 17. CODY WALKER 2. DAMIEN FITZPATRICK 17. HARRY JOHNSON-HOLMES
3. CHAMBECKLER VUI 18. PATRICK RYAN 3. SEKOPE KEPU 18. PATRICK RYAN
NSW WARATAHS v NEC GREEN 4. JED HOLLOWAY 19. TOM STANIFORTH NSW WARATAHS v SUNWOLVES 4. JED HOLLOWAY 19. TOM STANIFORTH
ROCKETS 5. RYAN MCCAULEY 20. MICHAEL WELLS 5. ROB SIMMONS (VC) 20. BRAD WILKIN
SCORERS [Folau2, T Naiyaravoro 2, A
6. LACHLAN SWINTON 21. MITCH SHORT 6. NED HANIGAN 21. JAKE GORDON
SCORERS JGordon 2, B Hegarty, H Roach Newsome 2, S Kepu, K Beale, N
tries; M Mason 3 goals 7. MACLEAN JONES 22. WILL MILLER Hanigan, N Phipps, C Rona, M Wells 7. WILL MILLER 22. ALEX NEWSOME
8. BRAD WILKIN 23. WILL MCDONNELL tries; B Foley 7 goa\s, pengoal 8. MICHAEL WELLS 23. BRYCE HEGARTY
REFEREE 9. JAKE GORDON 24. TAQELE NAIYARAVORO REFEREE Federico Anselmi 9. NICK PHIPPS

10. MACK MASON (C) 10. BERNARD FOLEY (C)

11. ALEXNEWSOME 11. TAQELE NAIYARAVORO

VENUE Prince Chichibu Memorial 12, IRAE SIMONE
Stadium, Tokyo

VENUE Allianz Stadium 12, KURTLEY BEALE

Sydney

13. LALAKAI FOKETI 13. CURTIS RONA

14. CAMERON CLARK 18,059 14. CAMERON CLARK

CROWD

15. BRYCE HEGARTY 15. ISRAEL FOLAU

2018 NSW RUGBY UNION ANNUAL REPORT




MATCH 17 MATCH 19 - SEMI FINAL

NSW WARATAHS LINEUP

RESERVES

NSW WARATAHS LINEUP

RESERVES

11/06/2018

31

NSW WARATAHS

- 40

v BRUMBIES

SCORERS

REFEREE

VENUE

CROWD

MATCH 18 - QUARTER FINAL

21/07/2018

30

NSW WARATAHS

D Fitzpatrick, T Naiyaravoro, W
Miller, B Wilkin tries; B Foley 4
goals, pen.goal

Angus Gardner

Allianz Stadium
Stadium

17,155

- 23

v HIGHLANDERS

SCORERS

REFEREE

VENUE

CROWD

2018 NSW RUGBY UNION ANNUAL REPORT

B Foley 2, | Folau tries; B Foley 3
goals, 3 pen.goals

Angus Gardner

Allianz Stadium
Sydney

12,067

1. TOM ROBERTSON

2. DAMIEN FITZPATRICK
3. SEKOPE KEPU

4. JED HOLLOWAY

5. ROB SIMMONS (VC)
6. NED HANIGAN

7. WILL MILLER

8. MICHAEL WELLS

9. NICK PHIPPS

10. BERNARD FOLEY (C)
1. TAQELE NAIYARAVORO
12. KURTLEY BEALE

13. CURTIS RONA

14. CAMERON CLARK

15. ISRAEL FOLAU

NSW WARATAHS LINEUP

1. TOM ROBERTSON

2. DAMIEN FITZPATRICK
3. SEKOPE KEPU

4. JED HOLLOWAY

5. ROB SIMMONS (VC)
6. NED HANIGAN

7. WILL MILLER

8. MICHAEL WELLS

9. NICK PHIPPS

10. BERNARD FOLEY (C)
1. TAQELE NAIYARAVORO
12. KURTLEY BEALE

13. CURTIS RONA

14. ALEX NEWSOME

15. ISRAEL FOLAU

16. TOLU LATU
17. HARRY JOHNSON-HOLMES
18. PATRICK RYAN

19. TOM STANIFORTH

28/07/2018

26

NSW WARATAHS

- 44

v LIONS

20. BRAD WILKIN

21. JAKE GORDON
22. ALEXNEWSOME

23. BRYCE HEGARTY

RESERVES

16. TOLU LATU
17. HARRY JOHNSON-HOLMES
18. PATRICK RYAN

19. TOM STANIFORTH

20. BRAD WILKIN

21. JAKE GORDON

22. CAMERON CLARK

23. BRYCE HEGARTY

SCORERS

REFEREE

VENUE

CROWD

N Hanigan, | Folau, T Robertson, J
Gordon tries; B Foley 3 goals

Glen Jackson

Emirate Airlines Park
Johannesburg

1. TOM ROBERTSON

2. TOLU LATU

3. SEKOPE KEPU

4. JED HOLLOWAY

5. ROB SIMMONS (VC)
6. NED HANIGAN

7. WILL MILLER

8. MICHAEL WELLS

9. NICK PHIPPS

10. BERNARD FOLEY (C)
1. TAQELE NAIYARAVORO
12. KURTLEY BEALE

13. CURTIS RONA

14. ALEX NEWSOME

15. ISRAEL FOLAU

16. DAMIEN FITZPATRICK

17. HARRY JOHNSON-HOLMES
18. PATRICK RYAN

19. TOM STANIFORTH

20. BRAD WILKIN

21. JAKE GORDON

22. BRYCE HEGARTY

23. CAMERON CLARK




NSW WARATAHS

NSW WARATAHS
BEST BACK

ISRAEL FOLAU

NSW WARATAHS
BEST FORWARD

MICHAEL WELLS

MATTHEW BURKE CUP
FINAL STANDINGS

ISRAEL FOLAU 99
MICHAEL HOOPER 77
MICHAEL WELLS 71
KURTLEY BEALE 65
TAQELE NAIAYARAVORO 64
BERNARD FOLEY 45
TOM ROBERTSON 44
DAMIEN FITZPATRICK 41
WILL MILLER 39
JAKE GORDON 37

2018 NSW RUGBY UNION ANNUAL REPORT

DEBUTANTS

#1646 Lalakai Foketi v Stormers (Allianz Stadium)

#1647 Curtis Rona v Stormers (Allianz Stadium)

#1648 Rob Simmons v Stormers (Allianz Stadium)

#1649 Tom Staniforth v Stormers (Allianz Stadium)

#1650 Shambeckler Vui v Stormers (Allianz Stadium)

#1651 Harry Johnson-Holmes v Stormers (Allianz Stadium)

#1652 Alex Newsome v Stormers (Allianz Stadium)

#1653 Nick Palmer v Stormers (Allianz Stadium)

#1654 Kalivati Tawake v Sharks (King’s Park)

#1655 Wil Miller v Sharks (King’s Park)

#1656 Mitch Short v Sharks (King’s Park)

#1657 Mick Snowden v Melbourne Rebels (Allianz Stadium)

#1658 Brad Wilkin v Chiefs (FMG Stadium)

#1659 Lachlan Swinton v NEC Green Rockets (Prince Chichibu Memorial Stadium)
#1660 Will McDonnell v NEC Green Rockets (Prince Chichibu Memorial Stadium)
#1661 Cody Walker v NEC Green Rockets (Prince Chichibu Memorial Stadium)

50 NSW CAPS

Tolu Latu v Sunwolves (Allianz Stadium)

Tagele Naiyaravoro v Brumbies (Allianz Stadium)

Damien Fitzpatrick v Highlanders (Allianz Stadium - Quarter Final)

100 NSW CAPS
Patrick Ryan v Queensland (Sydney Cricket Ground)
Bernard Foley v Chiefs (FMG Stadium)

20 NSW Tries
Tagele Naiyaravoro v Sunwolves (Prince Chichibu Memorial Stadium)

50 NSW Tries
Israel Folau v Highlanders (Allianz Stadium - Regular Season)

200 NSW Conversions
Bernard Foley v Sunwolves (Allianz Stadium)

50 NSW Points
Jake Gordon v Queensland (Suncorp Stadium)
Bryce Hegarty v NEC Green Rockets (Prince Chichibu Memorial Stadium)

100 NSW Points
Tagele Naiyaravoro v Sunwolves (Prince Chichibu Memorial Stadium)

800 NSW Points
Bernard Foley v Brumbies (GIO Stadium)

900 NSW Points
Bernard Foley v Sunwolves (Allianz Stadium)

50 Waratah Super Rugby Caps
Tolu Latu v Sunwolves (Allianz Stadium)
Tagele Naiyaravoro v Lions (Ellis Park)

100 Waratah Super Rugby Caps
Patrick Ryan v Blues (Brookvale Oval)
Bernard Foley v Queensland (Suncorp Stadium)

50 Super Rugby Caps
Bryce Hegarty v Rebels (Allianz Stadium) (33 for Rebels)

200 Waratah Super Rugby Conversions
Bernard Foley v Sunwolves (Allianz Stadium)

800 Waratah Super Rugby Points
Bernard Foley v Brumbies (GIO Stadium)

900 Waratah Super Rugby Points
Bernard Foley v Sunwolves (Allianz Stadium)

Individual All-time Records set in 2018

Kurtley Beale equal 6th most NSW caps (128) with Dean Mumm
Sekope Kepu 8th most NSW caps (125)

Most NSW caps at Flyhalf: Bernard Foley (94)

Bernard Foley 2nd most NSW points (958)

Kurtley Beale 4th most NSW points (456)

Israel Folau 7th most NSW points (280)

Israel Folau most NSW tries (56)

Tagele Naiyaravoro 6th most NSW tries (30)

NSW WARATAHS MILESTONES

Bernard Foley equal gth most NSW tries (26) with Eric Ford, Jack Ford & Charlie
Eastes

Bernard Foley most NSW conversions (216)

Bernard Foley 2nd most NSW penalty goals (132)

Mack Mason 169th NSW captain v NEC Green Rockets (Prince Chichibu Memorial
Stadium)

Bernard Foley 170th NSW captain v Rebels (AAMI Park)

Bernard Foley most conversions v Queensland (28)

Kurtley Beale most capped back (128)

Team All-time Records set in 2018

Highest Score v Jaguares: 28 (Estadio Jose Amalfitani)

Highest Score v Rebels: 51 (Allianz Stadium)

Highest Score v Queensland: 52 (Suncorp Stadium)

First-ever match v NEC Green Rockets (Prince Chichibu Memorial Stadium)
21,000 Points

Individual Super Rugby Records set in 2018

Kurtley Beale 5th most caps (128)

Sekope Kepu 6th most caps (125)

Most caps at Fullback: Israel Folau (70)

Most caps at Flyhalf: Bernard Foley (93)

Bernard Foley 2nd most points (958)

Kurtley Beale 4th most points (456)

Israel Folau 5th most points (280)

Israel Folau most tries (56)

Tagele Naiyaravoro 2nd most tries (30)

Bernard Foley sth most tries (26)

Kurtley Beale equal 7th most tries (24) with Matt Burke

Bernard Foley most conversions (216)

Bernard Foley 2nd most penalty goals (132)

Tagele Naiyaravoro most tries in a season (15)

Bernard Foley most conversions in a season (68)

Most Caps v Brumbies: Kurtley Beale (15)

Equal Most Caps v Jaguares: Damien Fitzpatrick, Israel Folau, Bernard Foley, Jake
Gordon, Ned Hanigan, Bryce Hegarty, Michael Hooper, Tagele Naiyaravoro, Tom
Robertson, Paddy Ryan & Michael Wells (2)

Equal Most Caps v Sunwolves: Bernard Foley, Ned Hanigan, Tagele Naiyaravoro,
Tom Robertson & Patrick Ryan (3)

Most Tries v Crusaders: Tagele Naiyaravoro (4)

Most Tries v Sunwolves: Tagele Naiyaravoro (4)

Most Tries v Highlanders: Israel Folau (5)

Equal Most Tries v Jaguares: Israel Folau (2) with Bernard Foley

Most Conversions v Queensland: Bernard Foley (28)

Most Conversions v Rebels: Bernard Foley (27)

Most Conversions v Blues: Bernard Foley (16)

Most Conversions v Crusaders: Bernard Foley (7)

Most Conversions v Sunwolves: Bernard Foley (18)

Most Conversions v Brumbies: Bernard Foley (17)

Equal Most Conversions v Stormers: Bernard Foley (9) with Matt Burke

Equal Most Conversions v Highlanders: Bernard Foley (17) with Matt Burke
Most Penalty Goals v Sunwolves: Bernard Foley (2)

Most Points v Sunwolves: Bernard Foley (42)

Most Conversions in a Match v Sunwolves: Bernard Foley (7) (Allianz Stadium)
Most Points in a match v Rebels: Bernard Foley (21) (Allianz Stadium)

Most Points in a match v Sunwolves: Bernard Foley (17) (Allianz Stadium)
Most Points in a match v Highlanders: Bernard Foley (25) (Allianz Stadium - Quarter
Final)

Bernard Foley 20th captain v Rebels (AAMI Park)

Most Capped Back: Kurtley Beale (128)

Team Super Rugby Records set in 2018

Highest Score v Rebels: 51 (Allianz Stadium)

Highest Score v Queensland: 52 (Suncorp Stadium)

Highest Score v Sunwolves: 77 (Allianz Stadium)

Highest Score v Australian Opponent: 52 v Queensland (Suncorp Stadium)
Highest Score in Super Rugby: 77 v Sunwolves (Allianz Stadium)
Biggest win v Highlanders (41-12) (Allianz Stadium - Regular Season)
Biggest win v Sunwolves (77-25) (Allianz Stadium)

Most Tries in a match: 12 v Sunwolves (Allianz Stadium)

Most Tries in a season: 81

Most Conversions in a season: 68

Most Points in a season: 613

300 Matches

900 Tries

8000 Points




NSW WARATAHS

Player Caps | RunOn Sub Not Used T (] PG
Kurtley Beale 18 18 2
Cameron Clark 1 8 3 1 3
Nick Duffy 1

Damien Fitzpatrick 18 17 1 3
Lalakai Foketi 13 g 8 2
Israel Folau 14 14 11
Bernard Foley 18 18 3 68 24
Jake Gordon 17 9 8 6
Ned Hanigan 15 15 4
Bryce Hegarty 17 6 1 1 2
Jed Holloway 18 10 8 L
Michael Hooper 13 13 4
Harry Johnson-Holmes 17 17 1 1
Andrew Kellaway 2 2

Sekope Kepu 15 15 2
Tolu Latu e} 1 8

Ryan McCauley 1 1

Will Miller 17 12 g 3
Tagele Naiyaravoro 16 14 2 15
Alex Newsome 13 6 7 2
Nick Palmer 4 4 1
Nick Phipps 12 8 4 2
Hugh Roach 9 9

Tom Robertson 18 18 1
Curtis Rona 18 17 1 7
Patrick Ryan 15 3 12

Mitch Short 3 1 2 2 2
Rob Simmons 16 16 1
Irae Simone 1

Mick Snowden 1 1

Tom Staniforth 18 6 12

Kalivati Tawake 2 2

Shambeckler Vui 3 3 1

Michael Wells 18 18 2
Brad Wilkin 6 6 1 1
Penalty Try

2018 NSW RUGBY UNION ANNUAL REPORT




3B.

NSW RUGBY

WOMEN

MATCH 1

01/03/2018

18

NSW WOMEN

- 0

v QLD WOMEN

SCORERS

VENUE

MATCH 2

18/03/2018

32

NSW WOMEN

A. Lafai, C. Leaupepe, A, Hewson
goal, 2 pen.goals

Suncorp Stadium
Brisbane

- 10

v WESTERN FORCE
WOMEN

SCORERS

VENUE

2018 NSW RUGBY UNION ANNUAL REPORT

2 S. Parker, G. Hamilton, A. Lafai
Tries
A. Hewson 2 goals, pen goal

Allianz Stadium
Sydney

NSW WOMEN LINEUP

1. EMILY ROBINSON
2. TASMIN SHEPPARD
3. EVELYN HOROMIA
4. INGE VISSER (VC)
5. ANA-LISE SIO

6. ARIANA KAIWAI

7. GRACE HAMILTON
8. LAURA DEVEREUX
9. COBIE-JANE MORGON (VC)
10. CHLOE LEAUPEPE
1. SHANICE PARKER
12. KATRINA BARKER
13. CRYSTAL MAGUIRE
14. ATASI LAFA|

15. ASH HEWSON (C)

NSW WOMEN LINEUP

1. EMILY ROBINSON
2. TASMIN SHEPPARD
3. EVELYN HOROMIA
4. INGE VISSER (VC)
5. ANA-LISE SIO

6. GRACE HAMILTON
7. ARIANA KAIWAI

8. LAURA DEVEREUX
9. COBIE-JANE MORGON (VC)
10. CHLOE LEAUPEPE
11. SHANICE PARKER
12. KATRINA BARKER
13. ATASI LAFAI

14. KIRRILY LAWS

15. ASHHEWSON (©)

RESERVES

ILISEVA BATIBASAGA

FI JONES

MELISSA FATU

SARAH LAMAN

NANCY VAIAKU

NATALIE MACLARN

KIRRILY LAWS

JOSEPHINE FALESITA

RESERVES

MELISSA FATU

SARAH LAMAN

NANCY VAIAKU

NATALIE MACLARN

FI JONES

JOSEPHINE FALASITA

ILISEVA BATIBASAGA

KENNEDY CHERRINGTON




MATCH 3

24/03/2018

24 - 5

NSW WOMEN v BRUMBIES

WOMEN

SCORERS 2C.Leaupepe, S. Parker Tries
C Leaupepe 3 goals, pen.

VENUE Warringah Rugby Park

MATCH 4

07/04/2018

57 - 0

NSW WOMEN v MELBOURNE

REBELS WOMEN

SCORERS 2S. Parker,2 C. Maguire, I.
Batibasaga, F. Jones, P O’Biren, K.
Cherrington, G. Hamilton, Tries
A. Hewson 6 goals

VENUE Box Hill Rugby Club

2018 NSW RUGBY UNION ANNUAL REPORT

NSW WARATAHS LINEUP

1. EMILY ROBINSON

2. TASMIN SHEPPARD

3. EVELYN HOROMIA

4. INGE VISSER (C)

5. ANA-LISE SIO

6. GRACE HAMILTON

7. ARIANA KAIWAI

8. LAURA DEVEREUX

9. ILISEVA BATIBASAGA (VO)
10. CHLOE LEAUPEPE

1. SHANICE PARKER

12. COBIE-JANE MORGON (VC)
13. CRYSTAL MAGUIRE

14. JOSEPHINE FALESITA

15. ATASI LAFAI

NSW WARATAHS LINEUP

1. MELISSA FATU

2. SARAH LAMAN

3. EVELYN HOROMIA
4. INGE VISSER (VC)

5. NATALIE MACLARN
6. PAREAKE O’BRIEN

7. FI JONES

8. LAURA DEVEREUX

9. ILISEVA BATIBASAGA
10. CHLOE LEAUPEPE
1. ATASI LAFAI

12. COBIE-JANE MORGON
13. CRYSTAL MAGUIRE
14. SHANICE PARKER

15. ASH HEWSON (C)

RESERVES

MELISSA FATU

FI JONES

SARAH LAMAN

NATALIE MACLARN

MATCH 5 - GRAND FINAL

20/04/2018 (AFTER EXTRA-TIME)

16 - 13

NSW WOMEN v QLD WOMEN

KENNEDY CHERRINGTON

NANCY VAIAKU

KIRRILY LAWS

ALAFOU FATU

RESERVES

KENNEDY CHERRINGTON

GRACE HAMILTON

EMILY ROBINSON

ANA-LISE SIO

NANCY VAIAKU

JOSEPHINE FALASITA

KIRRILY LAWS

TASMIN SHEPPARD

SCORERS M. Fatu Try,
A. Hewson goal, 2 pen goals.

VENUE Allianz Stadium
Sydney

NSW WARATAHS LINEUP

1. EMILY ROBINSON

2. TASMIN SHEPPARD

3. EVELYN HOROMIA

4. ANA-LISE SIO

5. INGE VISSER (VC)

6. GRACE HAMILTON

7. ARIANA KAIWAI

8. LAURA DEVEREUX

9. COBIE-JANE MORGON (VC)
10. CHLOE LEAUPEPE

1. ATASI LAFAI

12. KENNEDY CHERRINGTON
13. CRYSTAL MAGUIRE

14. SHANICE PARKER

15. ASH HEWSON (C)

RESERVES

FI JONES

MELISSA FATU

SARAH LAMAN

KATRINA BARKER

NATALIE MACLARN

NANCY VAIAKU

ILISEVA BATIBASAGA

JOSEPHINE FALESITA




NSW RUGBY
WOMEN

2018 SUPER W PLAYER APPEARANCE & SCORING STATISTICS

Name Career Caps T C P DG
Barker KA (Katrina) 2018 3

Batibasaga IC (lliseva) 2018 4 1

Cherrington KKB (Kennedy) 2018 4 1

Devereux AF (Laura) 2018 5

Falesita JP (Josephine) 2018 3

Fatu M (Melissa) 2018 5 1

Hamilton GJ (Grace) 2018 5 2

Hewson A (Ash) 2018 4 10 6
Horomia ER (Evelyn) 2018 5

Jones FE (Fi) 2018 5 1

Kaiwai AM (Ariana) 2018 4

Lafai A (Atasi) 2018 5 2

Laman SF (Sarah) 2018 5 1

Laws KM (Kirrily) 2018 3

Leaupepe CTT (Chloe) 2018 g 3 3 1

Maclarn NJ (Natalia) 2018 4

Maguire CT (Crystal) 2018 4 2

Morgan C (Cobie-Jane) 2018 5

O’Brien PM (Pareake) 2018 1 1

Parker SM (Shanice) 2018 5 5

Robinson EG (Emily) 2018 5

Sheppard TL (Tasmin) 2018 5

Sio A (Ana-Lise) 2018 5

Vaiaku NMKN (Nancy) 2018 4

Visser IP (Inge) 2018 5

Penalty Try 2018 o

Tally 101 20 13 7 o)
Total Points 100 26 21 o

2018 NSW RUGBY UNION ANNUAL REPORT




3cC.
GRADE & COLTS




SYDNEY RUGBY UNION RESULTS

GRADE COLT
RESULTS RESULTS

GRADE GRAND FINALS

1ST SEPTEMBER 2018
Intrust Shute Shield
Colin Caird Shield

JR Henderson Shield

Henderson Cup

NORTH SYDNEY OVAL

*Sydney Uni 45 v Warringah 12
*Eastern Suburbs 36 v Eastwood 17
Norths 20 v Easts 17

*Warringah 15 v Norths 12

GRADE SEMI FINALS

25TH AUGUST 2018
Intrust Shute Shield
Colin Caird Shield
JR Henderson Shield
Henderson Cup
26TH AUGUST 2018
Intrust Shute Shield
Colin Caird Shield
JR Henderson Shield
Henderson Cup

SYDNEY UNI FOOTBALL FIELD
Sydney Uni 41 v Manly 3

Easts 29 v Sydney Uni 29

Easts 26 v *Warringah 10
Warringah 36 v Sydney Uni 10
NORTH SYDNEY OVAL
Warringah 25 v Norths 22
Eastwood 31 v Manly 10

Norths 42 v Sydney Uni 20
Norths 23 v Eastwood 15

GRADE QUALIFYING FINALS

18TH AUGUST 2018
Intrust Shute Shield
Colin Caird Shield
JR Henderson Shield
Henderson Cup
18TH AUGUST 2018
Intrust Shute Shield
Colin Caird Shield
JR Henderson Shield
Henderson Cup
19TH AUGUST 2018
Intrust Shute Shield
Colin Caird Shield
JR Henderson Shield

Henderson Cup

* denotes minor premiers

- 2018 NSW RUGBY UNION ANNUAL REPORT

SYDNEY UNI FOOTBALL FIELD
Sydney Uni 21 v Easts 13
Sydney Uni 58 v Norths 30
Manly 7 v Sydney Uni 29
Easts 10 Eastwood 21
PITTWATER RUGBY PARK
Warringah 34 v Manly 28
Warringah 25 v Eastwood 31
Warringah 29 v Norths 33
Warringah 23 v Parramatta 7
NORTH SYDNEY OVAL
Norths 16 v Eastwood 10
Easts 28 v Manly 35

Easts 27 v Randwick 10

Sydney Uni 11 v Norths 15

2ND SEPTEMBER 2018

W. McMahon Memorial Shield

Shell Trophy
Bill Simpson Shield

25TH AUGUST 2018

W. McMahon Memorial Shield

Shell Trophy
Bill Simpson Shield
26TH AUGUST 2018

W. McMahon Memorial Shield

Shell Trophy
Bill Simpson Shield

18th August 2018

W. McMahon Memorial Shield
W. McMahon Memorial Shield

Shell Trophy

Bill Simpson Shield
Bill Simpson Shield
19TH AUGUST 2018

W. McMahon Memorial Shield

Shell Trophy
Shell Trophy
Bill Simpson Shield

* denotes minor premiers

COLTS GRAND FINALS

CONCORD OVAL
*Randwick 36 v Gordon 20
*Randwick 5o v Gordon 24
Easts 27 v Gordon 24

COLTS SEMI FINALS

COOGEE OVAL

Randwick 64 v Souths 14
Randwick 56 v Easts 12
Sydney Uni 17 v Easts 20
CHATSWOOD OVAL
Gordon 24 v Sydney Uni 13
Gordon 31 v Sydney Uni 11
*Fastwood 19 v Gordon 24

COLTS QUALIFYING FINALS

COOGEE OVAL

Souths 14 v Sydney Uni 34
Randwick 28 v Manly 21
Randwick 59 v Norths 10
Sydney Uni 39 v Easts 19
Eastwood 42 v Warringah 24
CHATSWOOD OVAL
Gordon 52 v Easts 17

Sydney Uni 39 v Easts 19
Gordon 52 v Eastwood 10

Easts 22 v Gordon 12




SYDNEY RUGBY UNION STANDINGS

GRADE
STANDINGS

SHUTE SHIELD - FIRST GRADE

TEAM P W D L
Sydney University 18 14 ¢ 4
Nonrthern Suburbs 18 14 1 3
Warringah 18 14 L 3
Manly 18 12 3 3
Eastwood 18 n 1 6
Eastern Suburbs 18 n o) 7
Southern Districts 18 9 1 8
West Harbour 18 9 1 8
Randwick 18 6 1 11
Parramatta 18 3 e} 15
Gordon 18 1 o 17

E
688
609
588
543
594

A

1008

BP

PTS
76
71
69
67
63
60

52

COLIN CAIRD SHIELD - SECOND GRADE

TEAM P W D L
Eastern Suburbs 18 15 o) 3
Sydney University 18 14 1 3
Warringah 18 13 1 4
Eastwood 18 12 o 6
Northern Suburbs 18 13 o} 5
Manly 18 12 1 6
Randwick 18 9 o o)
West Harbour 18 6 ¢} 12
Southern Dlstricts 18 5 e} 13
Gordon 18 4 o 14
Parramatta 18 4 l¢) 14
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F
639

A
286
299

381
433
356
416
498
629
541
675
790

BP

PTS
75
74
70
67
65
63
48
36
32

J.R. HENDERSON SHIELD - THIRD GRADE

TEAM

Warringah
Eastern Suburbs
Manly

Sydney University
Randwick
Northern Suburbs
Eastwood
Southern Districts
Gordon
Parramatta

West Harbour

D

1

L

1

[€) N © . )

~

F
516
577

308
610

511
538

606
386
357
219

210

A
215
325
283
208
368
310
315
474
561
816
759

BP

PTS
79
69
66
65
58
55
54
36
34
20

13

HENDERSON CUP - FOURTH GRADE

TEAM

Warringah
Eastern Suburbs
Manly

Sydney University
Randwick
Northern Suburbs
Eastwood
Southern Districts
Gordon
Parramatta

West Harbour

D

1

L

N~ 0w

~l

F
516
577

608
610

511
538

606
386
357
219

210

A
215
325
283
208
368
310
315
474
561
816
759

BP

PTS
79
69
66
65
58
55
54
36
34

20

13



SYDNEY RUGBY UNION STANDINGS
W.MCMAHON MEMORIAL SHIELD - COLTS 1 GREGOR GEORGE CUP ERIC SPILSTED SHIELD COLTS
CLUB CHAMPIONSHIP CLUB CHAMPIONSHIP

TEAM P W D L F A BP PTS

Randwick 3 3 o 5 939 205 3 50 Sydney University 2807 Randwick 914
Southern Districts 18 14 ¢ 4 708 376 16 72 Warringah 2624 ordon 767
Gordon 18 13 o : 23 446 17 69 Eastern Suburbs 2617 Sydney University 710
Eastern Suburbs 8 . o 7 655 288 - 61 Eastwood 2448 Eastern Suburbs 696
Sydney Univeristy 18 o o 8 625 472 7 - Northern Suburbs 2377 Eastwood 651
Manly 18 o o 8 527 370 " % Manly 2315 Southern Districts 635
Warringah 18 o o 8 478 o8 3 = Randwick 2201 Manly 521
Fastwood 18 9 5 9 s 420 5 5 Southern Districts 1758 Warringah 51
Northern Suburbs 18 8 o . 405 468 ; 3 Gordon 1396 Northern Suburbs 465
Parramatta 18 3 5 5 378 812 9 o West Harbour 1167 Parramatta 204
West Harbour 18 5 o 6 206 1139 S - Parramatta Rugby 891 West Harbour Colts 145

SHELL TROPHY - COLTS 2
KEN CATCHPOLE DINNER - AWARDS PRESENTED

TEAM P W D L F A BP PTS
Randwick 8 8 N . g e o 84 2018 Ken Catchpole Medal Adrian Musico (Parramatta)

David Brockhoff Medal - Coach of the Year Pauli Taumoepeau (Eastern Suburbs)
Gordon 18 14 1 3 744 270 17 75

Dick Byers Medal - Referee of the Year Michael Hogan
Sydney Uni 18 14 o 4 823 203 16 72

2018 Rookie of the Year Will McDonnell (Sydney University)
Eastern Suburbs 18 12 o 6 634 311 16 64

Roscoe Fay Trophy - Highest Points Scorer Christian Kagiassis (Southern Districts)
Eastwood 18 12 l¢] 6 587 380 15 63

2018 Highest Try Scorer Richard Woolf (Northern Suburbs)
Nothern Suburbs 18 10 e} 8 576 343 11 51 -

o E S Marks Shield Shute Shield Minor Premiers Sydney University RUFC

Southern Districts 18 9 o 9 438 495 9 45

Sir Roden Cutler Shield Sydney University RUFC
Manly 18 8 1 9 467 579 11 45

Gregor George Trophy Club Championshi Sydney University RUFC
Parramatta 18 5 o 13 304 718 6 26 & & Py P P yaney Y

Eric Spilstead Shield - Colts Club Championship Randwick RUFC
Warringah 18 4 o 14 311 778 9 25
West Harbour 18 1 ¢} 17 222 1101 7 11

BILL SIMPSON SHIELD - COLTS 3

TEAM P W D L E A BP PTS
Eastwood 18 15 1 2 575 193 16 78
Sydney University 18 14 3 1 601 184 14 76
Eastern Suburbs 18 13 2 3 551 222 13 69
Gordon 18 13 0 5 208 236 12 64
Randwick 18 11 2 5 486 197 13 61
Warringah 18 12 0 6 465 299 11 59
Northern Suburbs 18 7 0 11 277 393 11 39
Souther Districts 18 7 0 11 236 429 6 34
Western Sydney 14 6 0 8 252 287 10 34
Barbarians

Manly 18 5 0 13 248 616 5

West Harbour 18 1 0 17 57 584 1
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3D.
NSW SUBURBAN
RUGBY

SUBURBAN RUGBY RESULTS

GRAND FINALS

Kentwell Petersham 32 bt Drummoyne 17
Burke Mosman 21 bt Waverley 3
Barbour (Colts) Mosman 48 bt Hunters Hill 17
Whiddon Knox 20 bt Mosman 5

Judd Colleagues 14 bt Mosman 10
Sutherland Mosman 19 bt Colleagues o

DIVISION 2

GRAND FINALS

Barraclough Blue Mtns 29 bt St Patrick’s 5
Stockdale Forest 15 bt Blue Mtns 12
Robertson (Colts) St Patrick’s 22 bt Forest 15
Blunt Blue Mtns 17 bt Lindfield 12
Richardson St Patrick’s 21 bt UNSW 5

DIVISION 3

GRAND FINALS

Clark HAC 29 bt Barker Old Boys 22
Farrant HAC 24 bt Redfield 21
Nicholson (Colts) Barker 29 bt Newport 14
Campbell Barker 27 bt Old Ignatians 8

" 2018 NSW RUGBY UNION ANNUAL REPORT

GRAND FINALS

MclLean Syd Harlequins 37 bt Syd Irish 19
Grose Canterbury 25 bt Syd Irish 18
Walker Canterbury 15 bt Oatley 8

DIVISION 5
GRAND FINAL
Jeffrey Menai 38 bt Manly Savers 26

DIVISION 6
GRAND FINAL
Meldrum North Cronulla 31 bt Engadine 12

RADFORD CUP
GRAND FINAL
Radford (Colts) Eastern Suburbs 24 bt Mosman o




3E.

NSW COUNTRY
RUGBY UNION

STANDINGS & RESULTS

1st Grade

Qurimbah Razorbacks

ZONE GRADE WINNERS

15t Grade Coffs Harbour Snappers

2nd Grade Hasting Valley Vikings

W7s Port Macquarie Pirates
Mid North Coast

U8 Kempsey Cannonballs

U16 Port Macquarie Pirates

Ui4 SCU Marlins

15t Grade Wallamba Bulls
Lower Mid North Coast

W7s Gloucester Cockies

15t Grade Orange Emus

2nd Grade Bathurst Bulldogs
Central West - Blowes Cup (Tier 1) 3rd Grade Orange Emus

Colts Orange City

W7s Bathurst Bulldogs

1st Grade Narromine Gorillas
Central West - New Holland Cup (Tier 2)

2nd Grade Narromine Gorillas
Central West - Graincorp Cup North 1st Grade Guerie Goats
Central West - Graincorp Cup South 15t Grade Harden Red Devils
Central West Women’s Cup Wios Bathurst Bulldogs

15t Grade Tamworth Pirates

2nd Grade Narrabri Blue Boars
Central North

Colts Farrer MAHS

W7s Inverell Highlanders

2nd Grade The Lakes
Central Coast 3rd Grade Ourimbah Razorbacks
Colts Avoca Beach Sharks
W7s Avoca Beach Sharks
15t Grade Bowral Blacks
lllawarra 2nd Grade Bowral Blacks
3rd Grade Camden Rams
15t Grade Wollongbar Alstonville
Far North Coast 2nd Grade Ballina Seahorses
3rd Grade Yamba Buccaneers
1st Grade Warren Pumas
Western Plains
2nd Grade Walgett Rams
15t Grade Hamilton Hawks
2nd Grade Merewether Carlton
3rd Grade Hamilton Hawks
Newcastle Hunter )\i\cosmen’s The Waratahs
Divisional Muswellbrook Heelers
Colts Hamilton Hawks
4th Grade Maitland Blacks
1st Grade Robb College
2nd Grade Barbarians
New England 3rd Grade Armidale Blues
4th Grade Armidale Blues
W7s Robb College
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3F.
NSW WOMEN'’S
RUGBY

JACK SCOTT CUP

GRAND FINALS
Sydney University 38 bt Warringah 17

SEVENS

PREMIERS
Randwick Magic

' 2018 NSW RUGBY UNION ANNUAL REPORT




4.
NSW COMMUNITY
RUGBY

REPORT

New South Wales Rugby Union commitment to developing
the game as the grassroots has seen the many new programs
and initiatives delivered right across the State. Under the new
governance model, NSW Rugby Union has been able to further
streamline programs and further build on existing initiatives.

While a key focus remains getting more people involved in rugby, the
focus remains on building stronger relationships with rugby stakeholders,
delivering quality competitions at all levels of the game as well as develop
people from coaches to referees to volunteers and administrators.

Key results:

Get Into Rugby Schools Program. 16,965 children participated in the Get Into
Rugby program which is the national five week non-contract primary school rugby
program delivered by development staff and funded by the federal government.
Next steps with this program and a focus for NSWRU for the future is converting
participants into regular rugby competitors and working more collaboratively on
schools getting involved.

Registered Players. 36,711 registered club XVs players across NSW. While 2017
figures saw a small two per cent decrease in individual registration, largely due to Sydney
metropolitan moving to per player self registration, the number of teams registered increased
and Country Rugby registrations also increased by two percent.

Women’s Rugby. Across XV and 7s competitions, there was an increase of women’s and girls
players from five to nine per cent of the overall player participation base.

n 2018 NSW RUGBY UNION ANNUAL REPORT




STRATEGIC PILLARS
As part of New South Wales Rugby Union’s strategic pillars, the Community Department IMPLEMENT NEXT PHASE OF GOVERNANCE MODEL

has worked tirelessly to deliver against the organisational strategic pillars.
From a community side of the business, the governance changes saw an immediate focus to work with the
Metropolitan Advisory Committee to review the Western Sydney regional area as well as U18s competition model.

ACTIVATE & INTEGRATE IN THE COMMUNITY It was agreed that an U18s competition was to be introduced for 2019 to compliment the Shute Shield Colts competition.
e Northern Beaches Hub. Since launched in 2017, the Northern Beaches Additionally, several Western Sydney meetings were held with stakeholder groups to review previous reports and identify
Hub continues to deliver strong results galvanising local volunteers key initiatives and opportunities, including the establishment of the Western Sydney Hub, the formation of a Western Sydney

to focus on particular projects important to the area. This included coterie and through the Ramsay Foundation the development of a schools’ competition.

increasing teams in the Peninsula Cup as well as improving and increasing

coach development opportunities and activities. A key result during the
reporting period was increased junior club registration.

NSWRU also worked collaboratively with NSW Schools and Sydney Rugby Union to undertake strategic planning process
with a view to align state-wide including developing a three year ‘picture of success’ The results included immediate
changes at NSW Schools with the inclusion of female representation in playing as well as at a committee level.

e Schools Relationships Managers. From the funding through the Positive
Rugby Foundation (refer to PRF report) Primary and Secondary Schools
Relationship Managers were appointed with new roles to focus on the retention
and growth of school rugby. The initial focus was with 50 rugby playing schools
(public and private), in areas such as coach development and education for teachers
and old boys and safety practices. Additional focus areas will be expanded on
throughout 2019.

Sydney Rugby Union also identified the importance of conducting a strategic planning process. Key outcomes
included updating their constitution, as well as the introduction of participation agreements and the future
structure of their competition as strategic imperatives.

ENSURE WARATAHS ARE SUCCESSFUL

e Camp Waratah. 2018 saw a record number of participants take part across the State
(see below). Community department continued to contribute to this strategic pillar as part of the long term strategy,

by increasing the quantity and quality of participants in New South Wales.

e Waratahs Virtual Schools Visits. A popular initiative during 2018 was the introduction
of Skype visits whereby NSW Waratahs squad members would be beamed into remote and

regional classrooms around the State to talk all things rugby and meet their young fans.

This can be achieved by increasing the base through high standards of competitions, volunteer
support and coach development and education.

e Online registration and competition management system. The system underwent
upgrades which included a shift towards online payments as well as a Match Day APP for results and
live scoring.

GROW ATTENDANCE

° Free Junior Memberships. NSW Rugby Union once again offered all junior
registered players free NSW Waratahs memberships upon registration with their local
CREATING STRONG DEVELOPMENT PATHWAYS club, which offers them free entry to all NSW Waratahs home games.

e Schools engagement. NS\WRU engaged rugby schools to provide students and
families with the opportunity to attend NSW Waratahs home games.

NSW Schools Trials & Championships. NSW Rugby Union Headquarters at Daceyville hosted, for the first
time, the NSW Schools Trials and Championships. As part of NSWRU commitment to have a high performance
facility that can work more collaboratively with the rugby community, hosting these Trials and Championships
allowed NSWRU staff to better integrate with NSW Schools and Association Teams as well as allow all stakeholders to
maximise the NSWRU facilities.

Junior March Past. Over 3000 players representing 41 clubs participated
in the Junior March at Allianz Stadium, providing junior rugby club members
the opportunity to get a behind the scenes, unique experience at at NSW
Chikarovski Cup. As part of NSWRU commitment to growing women’s rugby and as a selection tool for NSW Women’s Waratahs home game.

Super W team, a Sydney and Country Women’s NRC was selected to play a home and away game for the Chikarovski Cup.

Inter-Association Schools Model. Throughout 2018 the Inter-Association Schools model was implemented
whereby GPS, CAS and ISA schools played each other prior to the traditional association matches. These Inter-
Association games matched schools of like size and standard to play. Following the successful delivery in 2018, the
format will be refined for the 2019 season.

NSW Junior U18 Invitational. For the first time a NSW Junior U18 team was invited to participate at the Division
Two Schools Championship in Queensland, going through the tournament undefeated.

NSW 7s Teams. Six teams represented New South Wales at the National 7s tournament in Queensland with the
two NSW Girls teams playing against each other in the final, NSW 1 prevailing as the champions. The NSW Boys

team delivered a convincing win over QLD in their final whilst the men’s team had their best ever performance
finishing runners-up.

Women’s Foundation Coaching & Refereeing Course. A women’s only Foundation Coaching and

Refereeing Course was held with 20 participants attending, once again highlighting the positive interest in
the women’s game across all levels.

2018 NSW RUGBY UNION ANNUAL REPORT




PROGRAMS

PROGRAMS
Camp Waratah

Active Kids Voucher.
$100 voucher from
NSW Government
towards sports
registrations

Size for Age & Blue
Card

NESA Teacher
Coaching Course

Junior Club Blitz

NSW Referees

2018 NSW RUGBY UNION ANNUAL REPORT

NUMBER PARTICIPANTS

1,195 participants

15,315 rugby participants used the
vouchers

Over 150 assessments were
undertaken in Sydney Juniors in
Size of Age.

More than 50 primary and
secondary teachers

35 Sydney Junior Clubs

13 Referee Associations
928 active referees

RESULTS

Held across the State, Camp Waratahs was delivered
across the school holidays, providing young children with
rugby clinics featuring visits from NSW Waratahs squad
members.

75% of the junior rugby participants used their voucher
for rugby redeeming in excess of $15M. Pleasingly the
programs has been extended for 2019.

Following a year of trials Size for Age policy for youth
rugby was introduced. The policy sees players that fall
over or under height and weight bandings to be assessed
to ensure the individual, their team and the opposition
feel safe and have a fair playing environment.

Successful implementation on the Blue Card system was
introduced for all players who show signs and symptoms
of concussion which saw their removal from the field
and a rigid return to play protocol implemented.

NSWRU was given NESA approval which allowed us to
deliver coaching courses to school teachers which is
recognised towards a teacher’s ongoing professional
development.

NSW Waratahs squad visited the Clubs to deliver clinics
and meet and greets with junior rugby players.

NSW Referee Angus Gardner was awarded World
Rugby Referee of the Year. FournTwenty Pies became a
sponsor of Referees.

COMPETITION

Primary School 7s

Secondary School 75

State 7s
Championships

Waratah Cup

Suburban Finals

Country Rugby
Championships

NSW Junior
Rugby Union State
Championships

NSW Women’s Rugby

Sydney Rugby Union

BY THE NUMBERS

213 school teams participated

351 school teams participated

85 teams participated

130 teams participated

23 finals held

A record 32 colts teams

participated.

More than 500 participants hosted
by Western Plains in Warren.

2,500 players
140 teams

330 Players

2,632 players

COMPETITIONS

RESULTS

The finals day held at Daceyville with 16 teams
participating representing their regional hubs. Teams
had the opportunity to play finals at Allianz Stadium as a
curtain raiser to the Waratahs.

Held in Newcastle, the competition once again was a
feature on the community calendar

The State Championships in Forster.

WINNERS:
Girls competition was won by Burraneer
Boys competition was won by Manly

WINNER:
Patrician Brothers Blacktown (Waratah Cup)

WINNERS:

Kentwell Cup: Petersham

Bruce Graham Shield (Division One Club Champions):
Mosman

WINNERS:

Caldwell Cup: lllawarra
Richardson Cup: Central Coast
Colts: Newcastle/Hunter
Women’s 7s: Hunter

XV’s: lllawarra

WINNERS:

U12 and U13: Parramatta

U14: Penrith

U1s Boys: Northern Suburbs
U1s Girls: Randwick/Parramatta
U16 Boys: Gordon

U16 Girls: Gordon

U17 Girls: West Harbour

Open: Manly (Open)

WINNERS:

Country Women’s XVs Championship winners: lllawarra
Jack Scott Cup winners: Sydney University

7's Series: Randwick

WINNERS:

Shute Shield: Warringah

Colts 1: Randwick

Club Championship: Sydney University

Catchpole Medal (player of the year): Adrian Musico
(Parramatta)

Brockhoff Medal (coach of the year): Pauli Taumoepeau
(Eastern Suburbs)

Dick Byres Medal (referee of the year: Michael Hogan



5.
BY THE
NUMBERS

COMMUNITY TICKETING, MEMBERSHIP & DIGITAL

S B
S N

MEMBERSHIP
REVENUE TARGET

421

MEMBERSHIP

REVENUE ACTUAL
16,284

TOTAL NUMBER OF
FREE U16 JUNIOR

SEASON PASSES
GIVEN OUT
JNR
637

¢

DEMOGRAPHICS

/

PARTICIPATED
CANGINEIZISN |\ THE JUNR

MARCH PAST
TICKET REVENUE T
$793,132

1,400,000

170,512 PAGEVIEWS

JUNIORS

36,711
9%

OUR WEBSITE RECHED

Female THE HIGHEST NUMBER OF
72,505 PAGEVIEWS SINCE THE
Web  28.6% 2015 & 2015 SEASONS.
380,000 USERS VISITED

Facebook 22% '
° \,’ 52,525 WITH AN AVERAGE
Instagram 22.0% VIEWTIME OF 2MINS AND
. 23 SEC PER PAGE.

Twitter 41% 23,286 @
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6. POSITIVE
RUGBY
FOUNDATION

REPORT

At the end of 2017, New South Wales Rugby Union officially launched the NSW Positive

Rugby Foundation which is designed to raise funds to support key programs and initiatives
to support the growth of rugby across the State.

The Positive Rugby Foundation is part of NSWRU commitment to diversifying revenue streams

as well as bring to life the organisation’s vision of care, connect and unify.

There are six community areas of the game that have been targeted by the NSW Positive Rugby
Foundation to raise funding for. These include Schools and Juniors Rugby, Country Rugby, Women’s
Rugby, Western Sydney Rugby, Indigenous Rugby and Elite Youth Development

An ambitious plan to raise $6 million for investment in grassroots rugby has been set with the goal of
extending the ability of NSW Rugby to invest in and support the growth of the game.

Since launched, the NSW Positive Rugby Foundation has received great support from Coterie members with
the first two Coterie programs focused on Schools and Country rugby.

It’s not just about raising money but rather making a positive difference to the health and wellbeing of
communities, funding high quality grassroots resources and programs and enabling more people to experience the

core values, life skills and opportunities unique to rugby.

Some of the key programs delivered throughout 2018 include:

Get Talkin Tour. This program delivered Mental Health workshops to schools and rugby communities in these 13 locations;
trained development officers in the Positive coaching framework and delivered on-field rugby clinics in each location using,

The program worked with partners batyr and also received funding from Macquarie Foundation. NSWW Waratahs players,

coaches, NSWRU staff visited 13 drought affected country centres in the Central West and Western Plains regions including;
Bathurst, Orange, Dubbo, Narrabri, Moree, Cowra, Nygen, Walgett.

Appointment of two schools Relationship Managers. Providing more resources to support schools programs was identified as a
key priority which in turn saw the appointment Christian Mayo and Greg Mumm as Primary and Secondary Schools Relationships
Managers. Face to face meetings and needs analysis completed with all 9o per cent of the top 50 Rugby Schools in NSW, identifying
Safety Messaging, Coach Education, as vital in all schools and specifically program presence in the primary environment.

Coach & Captain functions. Delivered on a promise to provide ‘inner circle’ experiences for Foundation members and offered a means
for meaningful feedback and discussion with these key stakeholders. The Mothers safety focus group was a direct outcome out of these
discussions. The private function for Foundation coterie members where they received an inner circle experience with Andrew Hore,
Michael Hooper and Daryl Gibson.

Thank you to all our founding Coterie members and those who have renewed to continue their commitment to our programs.
Our vision is to grow the Coteries part of the program and provide that connection to those who love rugby to be able to have a

meaningful connection to rugby.
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7.
OBITUARIES

NSW Rugby Waratahs would like to acknowledge the following players who represented
NSW Waratahs, and sadly passed away in 2018:

° Len Diett 5 caps 1959-60
e  SirNicholas Shehadie 37 caps 1946-57
e  Allan Edgar 1cap 1947
e  Bruce Taafe 7 caps 1970-72
e  Jack Carroll 6 caps 1950-54
e  Alan Dennett 3caps 1946
e lan Miles 4 caps 1950-52
e  Brian Moffat 1Cap 1950
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MANAGEMENT REPORT - CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT SUMMARY

MANAGEMENT REPORT - CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET SUMMARY

FY2018 - Profit and Loss Statement

INCOME
Rugby
Super Rugby participation fee
HP funding
Development funding
Commercial
Matchday
General tickets
Memberships & Subscriptions
Sponsorship
Duco 10's
Hospitality
Licensing
Venue rebates
Corporate
Other Income
Interest

Community
TOTAL INCOME

EXPENDITURE
Rugby
Player Payments
Team travel
Team servicing
Staff costs
Other team
Total Team costs
Commercial
Matchday
Venue costs
Hospitality costs
Other matchday
Sponsorship servicing
Membership servicing
Marketing
Staff costs
Other commerecial
Total commercial costs
Corporate
Staff costs
Property
Other corporate
Total

Community

TOTAL EXPENDITURE
FINALS - NET SURPLUS
NET SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)

Actual Budget] Variances Actual Actual| Variances
FY2018 FY2018 ($'s) FY2018 FY2017 ($'s)
4,550,000 4,500,000 50,000 4,550,000 4,500,000 50,000
1,055,000 900,000 155,000 1,055,000 900,001 154,999
299,000 285,000 14,000 299,000 277,498 21,502
0 0
793,132 1,101,000 (307,868) 793,132 789,252 3,880
1,417,005 1,690,000 (272,995) 1,417,005 2,074,344 (657,339)
3,024,577 3,268,700 (244,122) 3,024,577 3,866,018 (841,441)
82,576 80,000 2,576 82,576 152,561 (69,985)
219,026 225,000 (5,974) 219,026 214,691 4,336
149,277 203,000 (53,723) 149,277 164,732 (15,455)
2,477,416 2,715,000 (237,584) 2,477,416 2,491,424 (14,008)
144,336 210,000 (65,664) 144,336 54,371 89,964
228,720 150,000 78,720 228,720 218,274 10,446
3,740,379 3,371,488 368,891 3,740,379 4,896,344 | (1,155,966)
18,180,446 | 18,699,187 (518,742) 18,180,446 | 20,599,511 | (2,419,065)
5,848,064 5,868,072 20,008 5,848,064 5,592,498 (255,566)
101,355 90,000 (11,355) 101,355 69,046 (32,309)
1,106,499 1,034,329 (72,170) 1,106,499 918,952 (187,547)
1,956,613 1,805,016 (151,597) 1,956,613 1,905,914 (50,699)
89,374 102,920 13,546 89,374 80,424 (8,950)
9,101,905 8,900,337 (201,568) 9,101,905 8,566,833 (535,072)
853,181 1,010,000 156,819 853,181 729,411 (123,770)
234,239 171,334 (62,905) 234,239 150,797 (83,441)
377,501 366,475 (11,026) 377,501 326,546 (50,956)
660,822 650,538 (10,284) 660,822 758,504 97,682
234,346 316,875 82,529 234,346 285,318 50,972
292,311 352,000 59,689 292,311 681,723 389,411
1,014,141 1,163,120 148,979 1,014,141 1,015,739 1,598
101,037 145,560 44,523 101,037 134,209 33,172
3,767,580 4,175,902 408,323 3,767,580 4,082,248 314,668
548,186 532,416 (15,770) 548,186 535,104 (13,081)
463,516 517,086 53,570 463,516 1,305,455 841,938
416,887 402,276 (14,611) 416,887 353,591 (63,296)
1,428,589 1,451,778 23,189 1,428,589 2,194,150 765,561
4,500,158 4,174,466 (325,692) 4,500,158 5,742,050 1,241,892
18,798,232 | 18,702,484 (95,748) 18,798,232 | 20,585,281 1,787,049
71,077 0 (71,077) 71,077 0 (71,077)
(546,709) (3,296) (543,412) (546,709) 14,230 (560,939)
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

ASSETS

Cash

Receivables
Prepayments

Fixed assets (net wdv)

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Trade and sundry creditors
Accruals

Provisions

Deferred revenue

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY
Prior year retained profits/(deficit)
Current year profits/(deficit)

TOTAL EQUITY/(DEFICIT)

O/Balance Actual Prior Year Variance
Dec-17 Dec-18 Dec-17
9,571,144 7,129,463 9,571,144 (2,441,681)
499,402 584,707 499,402 85,305
20,814 34,700 20,814 13,886
301,075 247,447 301,075 (53,628)
10,392,436 7,996,317 10,392,436 (2,396,118)
(857,693) (626,931) (857,693) 230,762
(519,436) (527,629) (519,436) (8,194)
(427,835) (436,418) (427,835) (8,584)
(7,457,571) (5,822,145) (7,457,571) 1,635,425
(9,262,534) (7,413,125) (9,262,534) 1,849,409
1,129,902 1,129,902 1,115,670 14,232
0 (546,710) 14,231 (560,941)
1,129,902 583,192 1,129,901 (546,709)
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Mew South Wales Rugby Union Lid
Directors" report
H December 2018

Directors’ report
Wour dirggtars prgsant their reporl on dew South Wales Rugby Union Ltd for the year ended 31 Decambar 2018,

Directars
Tho droctors of the Campany &1 any Uree dunng or sies tha end of the hnanceal year are:

Roger Davis (Chairman)

Karry Chikgrovski

Jahn Marnsan

Barry Ruddy

Dawnd Begg

Ben:amin Sregory (@ppoinled on Q103 E)
Anthony Crawford (appointed on 0&M12/18)
Arthur Laundy (rasigned on 280211 8}
Jahn Ardron {resigned on 2802/ 8)

Princpal activitles
The princpal continuing actviles of the Company dufihg the course of the yoar anded 31 December 2018 were the
argan.sation, develsgment and promoton of the gama of rughy union in the State of New South Wales.

Review of operations
The cperating loss for the year ending 31 Dacember 2018 for the Company amounted to $264, 7789 (2017 5254, 2495 profit].

Significant changes in state of affairs
There were no significant changos in the state of afairs of the Company during ihe financial year.

Limited by guarantee

The Company S a company hmited by guarantaa. n the avant of he Company bang wound up ezch member iz hable to
conlribute to the dobls of the Company mcurred whilsl ihey were 3 mamber or within eng year frem them ceaging 1o be a
meniker, or for the purpose of adjusting ke righls of the coniribators. amongs! Ihemsalves, such amounl 35 may be ragquirec
riat exceeding 510

Likely developments and expecied results of operations

Further information on tikely devalopments in the gperations of the Company and the expected resulls of operations have
At Baan inclugad n fdns ingrcs| repord because e direclors believe it would be likely to resolt in unrsasonabhe pre)edice
to the Company.

Insurange of offlcers

Cruring the financial year Ihe Company has paid pramiums in respeal of draclors and officers' liakility for legal expensses and
ingurance contracls far e year anded 31 Dagamber 2078, Such insurance contracts msure againgl ceitain hamlity {subpect
to speeific exclrsions) parsons who s ar have been drechors or execubve officers of the Company.

The diractors hawve not induded dalails of the nalure of the liakities covered or the amount of Ihe premiums paid in raspeact
of the direclors’ and officars’ habilily and legal axpangas insurance conlracte, a5 such disclaaune is prahibilad undar tha
terms of the canlracl

Pragesdings on behall of the company

Mo person nas applied to the Coul under sechon 237 ol ithe Corporalons Act 2007 for lagve 1o Bring proces dings on babal?
of the company, or lg inlervene in any proceedings to which the company is a parly, far the purpose of taking reseonsibility
on behalf of the company for all or part of those preceedings fer the year anded 31 December 20{E,

No proceadings hawve boen broughl o intarvated in an bahaf of the Company vath lesve of the Courd under section 237 of
the Corporations Act 2001,

itatters subseguent o e end of the financkal year

Thare has not argon in the nlerdal babvéan the ehd of the inanosl yaar and the date of this repor any ilem, transzaclion or
evant of a malenal and unusuel nalurs likely, in the opinion of e directors of the Company, to afiect sigraficanily ho
aperations of he Company, tha resulis of those operabons, or lhe state of atfars of the Company, in fulure Gnancial years.
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New South Wzles Rugby Union Lid
Directors’ report

A Decomber 2048

(eonlinued)

Audlter's Independence declaration
A copy of the auditor's Independence declaralion as required under seclion 307C of the Corporations Act 2007 is sel oul on
page 3.

Buditor
Fw conlinues In office in accordance with section 325 of the Corporations Aof 2001

This rapert is made in accordance with a resolution of directors,

Foger Davis

Biractor

Sydrey
16 April 2010
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Finantial stalements
Siatement of comprahens iva ncome
. . Balance shaat
Auditor’s Independence Declaration Statement of changes in squity
Statemant of cash ows
As lead auditor for the audit of Mew South Wales Rugby Union L1d for the vear caded 21 December Notes Ia the Francal stataments
2018, T deelare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been: Diractors’ deglaration
tndependent aud:tors rapot

[T~ e Rt W R

| s

(#} oo contravettions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in
relation to the audit; and

(b)  nocontraventions of any applicable code of professional conduet in relation to the avdit,

James Metlvogue Sydaey
Fariner 14 April zoin
PricewaterhouseCnopers

These financral statermants cover Now Sauth Wakes Rugby Unien Ltd as an individual entity. The financial stalestenls ara
presentaed n the Ausiralian cumency.

Hew South Wales Roghy oo Lid is a company limited by guarantas, ingomporaled and domodsd in Auskralia, Its
registerad office and prngipal plage of businass is,

Mew South Wales Rugby Limon Lid
Giavid Phillips Sports Complex
Banks Avare

CACEYWILLE NSW 2032

AR

‘ PricevraterhouseCoopers, ABN 52 780 437 757
One tmlernarivnol Towers Sydney, Warermans Qray, Rorongaras, GPO AOX 2650, SYTINEY NSW 2000
17+ 2 8200 0000, Fr 6! 2 266 9000, WL LR O0RL. o

Leve! 13, IPSQ, 160 Miequarie Siverl, Parrgmaita NSW ziso, PO Box 1155 Porramaiio NSW 2124
To 61 2 gfisy 2470, F2 087 2 8268 9009, Wi DU com. g

&, dascnpiion of the nafure of the Company's aperations and its prncipal activities is incleded in the directors’ report an
pages 1-2, which is not pert of these financial slalemants.

The financig! statements were authonzed for iasue by the dirgctors on % April 2019, The company has the povwar to amend
ardd raissue the inancal slatemants.

ad.

2018 NSW RUGBY UNION ANNUAL REPORT




Mew Scouth Wales Rugby Unlon Lid New Sauth Wales Rugby Unioe tid

Statement of camprehensive income Balance sheat
For the year ended 31 December 2018 As at 31 Becember 20148
2018 2017 201E 2017
MNotes % 5 Moles % %
ASBETS
Revenue from continuing operations 3 4,331 565 6,032 304 Lurrent assots
Cash and cash egquivalenis 5 JIET 0% T7.0H
Expcnses 4 Trade and other receivables & 442 204 127,344
Framiership Rugby (413,424) (455 E37) Relaled party recervahles T 1 2 156
Communily Rughby {3,110,280) (3,098,721) Total curent assels
Corpovata {830, 443} (2,207 268
Pasitive Rugby Foundation {137,177} - Non-current assets
Finance costs 4 - {16,252 Property, platit and eguproant 8 38474 25,408
Profit f {Loss) for the year {259 773} 254 295 Intangible asssts o 47 18
~ Total non-cument assats 1
Otter comprahensiva ingome for the year - - Total ks 3 28
Total comprehensive Incame / {loss) lar the year {253,779} 254 295 9l BesE 2,338,2 2,433,983

LIABILITIES
Current fiabilitles

The atove sistemont of comprafanciva mcame showld be read it conjunelion with the acoompamang noles. Trade and other payablas 10 350,096 509 468
Dofarad revarya 11 437,285 71,958
Provisigng 12 155 737

Total current labilities

Haon-current {labllities

Provisians 13 50,840 50,000
Total non-current habilites 0,040 80,000
Tolai lzkilities 1,042 227 g58, 163
Met assels 1,376 041 1,575,820
EQUITY

Angumulated surpluga 1d 1396641 1,575 820
Total eguily 1,316,041 1,575 B20

The akove bafance shae! shouwld be read in comunchon With {he accompenying notes.
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Mew South Wales Rugby Union Lid New South Wales Rugby Unlan L td

Statement af changes in equity Statement of cash HNows
For the year ended 31 December 2018 For the year ended 31 December 206
2018 2047
Accumulated Total Moles 3 i
surplus eguity
Motes $ Cash Hows from operating activities
Cash raceipls rom matches seppomars, sponsers, mambors,
Balance at 1 January 2017 1,321,525 1,321,525 (inclusive of GET) 5,041,548 4 444,040
Prafil ! {loss]) kor the yaar 254,285 254 235 Cash paymants to suppliers and employvees (inclusive of GET) {4,823 550) 16,556 082
Cther comprehensive income / [loss)
Total camprehensive Income [ {toss) far the year 154,295 254,265 Met cash inflow ! [outilow) Irem operating activities 20 345,860 (2,088,152}
8alance 2t 31 December 2047 1575820 1,575,320 Cash flows from nvesting activities
Payments for propeny, plant and equipmeant and intangibles
Balance at 1 January 2043 1,575,820 1,575,820 Ket cash inflow ! foutflow) from invasting activilies
Frofit | {loss) for the year (258,776 (2548, 773
Qther comprehandiva incomea f (loss) Lash flows from firancing activities
Tatal comprehenslve Incomne  |loss) for the year (258,779 [259,779) Finance incorma racsivad 233 01
Finance costs pad 116.252)
Balance at 31 December 2018 14 1,316,041 1,316,041 Met cash irflow ! {outfiow] from finaneing activitles 2,334 (15.751%
The ghove statermant of changes in equily shoutd be read in confunclion wilh the socampanying nales. Met inerease f {(decrease) (n cash and cash equlvalents 290 578 12141 432)
Cash and cash aguivalants al the beginnitg of Ihe fnangisl year 7.0 2,248 482
Cash and cash equivatenits at end af year 5 JI6T. 609 77,031

The stove stalernent of cash fows should e read n corfunclion with ihe aocompanying moles

2018 NSW RUGBY UNION ANNUAL REPORT




New South Yales Rugby Union Lid

Notes to the financial statements
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summary of signifcant accounting policas
Cnalcsl accounting astimates and [udgemenls
Revenue

Expensas

Current assets - Cash and cash equvalenls
Currant aggate - Trade recaivables

Currant asszats = Relatad Pariy raceivablas
Non-currant assets — Proparty, plant & adquipianl
Mon-currant assats = Intangibls Assels

Current lizbilities - Trage and other payables
Curranl ligbilitins = Crafamrsd Ravonoes

Currant lizhilities - Provisiohs

MWon-currant abiliires - Previsions

Acgumulated funds

Remuneration of auditors

Commitments

Ralaled party transactions

Conlingences

Evants occuming atter the reporfing period
Recanciliation of profiffless] o nal cash infow frem operating activities

2018 NSW RUGBY UNION ANNUAL REPORT

Mates ta the financlal statemants
H December 2018

Mew South ¥Yales Rugby Union Lid
MNotas to the fInancial statemants
37 Becember 2048

1 Summary of significant accounting policles

The prine pal accounlng policies adoplad in the preparaton of the inancial stalemen’s ae sal cut be'ow. These policies
have been consistently applied to 2l the yaars prasented, unlass otherwse stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

In the directars’ opinion, the Company is nat a repzding entity because there are no users dependent on general purpose
finanoal statermenis.

This is 2 spacial purpgsa financial statamaent that has been prapared for the sobe purpasa of complying with Ihe Corporations
At 2001 requirements 1o preparg and disintuts inancal statements @ the members and musl net be vsad lar any ather
purpoae. The directors have determined thal the accounting polic- es adopted are appropriate 1o meet the needs of the
mambers.

The finanzeal staterments have been prapared n accordance wilth the recegnibion and measuretmant principlas of Australian
Accounting Standards and Inlanpretations issued by the Avstraban Accountng Slandards Board and the Corporatiens Aot
2G(H . |t conlains only Ihose disclosures considered necessary by the directors to meet the neads of the members. Mew
South Wales Rugbry Union L is & not-foz- profit enly (o6 The purpose of preparing We inancial stalements.

Higloncal cosl convantion
The finranaal statemsants have been prapered in accordance with the histoncal cost canvention,

Critical sccounling estimates

The praparation of fnancial starerments reguires the use of canain catiegl accountng estimates. |t also regquires
management ko exercise its jJudgemen? in the process of applying the company's 2ccounting policies. The areas invgiving a
higher degree of wdgement or complexily, or areas where assumptions and eslimates are significant to the hnanoal
slatemants, ara disclosed v nobe 2.

The expanditurain Ihe statament of comprehansive income hae baen classifind to better prasent the functional nature of the
Compaty's activities.

{b} Revenuc recognition

Revenuea frgm malch day tickets ard grants is measyred at fair valug and tzken 13 inggme in the peariad W which i relatas.

Revenus from sponsorship 13 measured af far value ard recognised evenly on a monthy basis within the fingoceal yaar 1=
which il releles Sponscrship advarces are daferrad until earned pursuant o the sponsarship agreement.

Intares! mcome is recognised an a time proportion basis using thea effective inlerest method.

{c} Incometax

The Company & exempt Fom ingome 1@ in aggerdancs with tha provisions of section 23(g) of the Income Tax Atsecsment
Acl,




Mew South Wales Ruglyy Unlon Lid
Hotes to the financial stalements
31 Cegember 2010

1 Summary of slgnificant accnunting pnlictes {cnnttnued}
id} teazes

Laagas of propedy, plant and egquipment where the Company has subslantially all the risks and rawams of cwnership are
clazsilied a4 (inance leases, Fnance leases are cacitalised at the léase's inceplicn al the fower of the tarr value ol the
legsed property and the present value of the minimem lease payments. The comesponding rental obligatons, nel of finance
charges. are included in ather long-term payables. Each leass payment s allocated belween the lisbility and finance cost.
The nange costis charged to the stalement of cormprehensive ncome ovar the lsass penod 59 as to producs 3 constant
pericdic rate of inleras! on lhe remaneng balance of the liabiity far each paricd. The oroperty, plant and equipmaent acgu:red
under finance leases are depreciated aver e shorar of fhe assal’s vzaful ife and tha lease term

Leazas in whrch a significant portion of th iisks and redards of cwnoessiop ars ratainad by tha tessor are classifind as
operaling leases. Faymenls made under oparating eases (nat of any incantives received from the [essor) are charged to the
statament of comprehensive incoma on & straight-ine basis ovar the paniad of the lazse.

(el Property, plant and sguipment

AH propaty, plant gnd equprmend are siated at histoncal ool less depreciation Histencsl cost includes sxpandiume that i
diractly attrbutabla to the acquisition of the ems.

Depraciation is calculated wsmg the straight ine method to allocate 15 cost o revalued amounts, nel of ds resigual vaues
cwvat ils eslimated usetul hves as [dllgws:

- Leasehzld improvemsants Crver the lagse laim (N
- Office mauignnan 5 years

- Leasad mator vehicles 5 years

- Plarm and eguipment 10 years

(il The cosl of other leassheld imgrevemsents to or on leasehatd properties is amersed gver the unaxpired pencd of
the kease or Ine astimated usaful life of the mprovernent to the Company, whichavar is the shortar.

The assats’ rasidual valuees and wsaful lives are revicwead, and adusted f appropriate, at sach raporting paricd.

i Intanglble assets

Tradermarks, icences and wetks:te cosfs

Trademarks, icencas and wahs:ta costs have a firmle usaful lile and are caniad at cosl lese secumulafed amartisation and
imparitad lasses. Arnortization it catoulaled using the straghl line method to sliocate the cost of trademarks . ligences erd
welizile cosls pvar ils eshimaled useful hves, which s 10 years

{g} Impairment of assets

Intangible assels thal have an ndefinite vsaful ife are not subject 1o amadisation and are laslad annualy or impairment, o
moare freguarily if avents or changes in arcumstansss irdicate that thay might be impaiced, Cther aszals ar raviewad
impairment whetever avents of changas in ciroumstaress indicate that ©he camying amount may not e recovarablba. An
impaicment loss & recogrisad tor the amount by which The asset's camyng amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Hon-financial assals sthar Ihan goodwill that suffared impasmeant are reviewad for pessibla ravarsal of the impainment 2t
gach reporting daly,

(h) Trade and other payables

These amounts represand lizbilibes for gocds and servicus presadaed to the Samparny prior ta tha and of the hancial yoar
ared wheek are unpaid. The arounts are obsacued.

M Borrowings

Borrowings are inibally recognised at tair valee, net of transaction costs incurmed.

Borowings are classifind as current liabilies untess tha Company kas an enconditionzl righl o defar ssflamant of the
lraaly for al laast 12 months aftes he balance sheal date.

New Sauth Wales Rughy Unden L
Motes to the financial statements
31 December 2019

1  Summary of significant accounting pelicles [continued]}
(1} Borrowlng costs

Borrowing costs ncurred far the construchon of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the panied of time that js raguired
1o complets and prepace the sssel kar s intended use or sale. Other barowing costs are expensed.

k] Provisions

Pravisions for legal claims are recognised whan; the Company has a present legal or construclve obfigation as a result of
pasl evants, ot is probable hat aneutfiow of resources will be required to setile the chhigation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated Prownons are not recogrised for future operating los3as.

Whare thers are a number of similar obligations, the lixelihood vhat an outllow will be raquired in sotilament is datarmined by
considenng tha dass of obliganons a5 a whole, A provision is recognised even if the liketihood of ar outRow with respect b
any one tem nciuded in lhe sama class of chlgations may ba small.

Provisions gre maasured at the preseant value of managemant's best astimata of the expend-ure required to <ettio ke
presanl eiligetion st the balance skest date. The discount rate uged to datermine the present value reflects currenl markel
#esassmants of the time valua of money and the fs«s speafic o the iabikty.

{li Employee benefits

fif  Wopges and zalanes, annual aave oad Sick Bave

Liabitinas fer wages and salares, ingfuding nen-monalary benehls. annual leave and accumulaling sk leave expactad (o be
satlled within 12 menths of tha reponing date are recognised in other payables in respect of employees’ services up to lne
mporting date and ara measured at lhe amagunls expecled to be paid when the ligbililtes are setliled.

] Long service lagwvs

The liability {or long sarvics [adve s racognised n the provision fer ertplayes benelits and measured as the present vaiue of
expected futura payrments to be mads in respec! of seraces provided by employees up to the reporting date using the
prajachad unit radit melied, Censideralion is grven to expected fulure wage and salary levels, expenence of employes
dapanuras and pariods of sarvice, Expacted fulure payments are discounted using maskat vields at the reponing date on
corparata bond ralgs wnth temms (o malurity and cumency that match, as closely as possible, 1he estimated fulure cazh
Sutlizws.

(il Refiremant baneht ahfigeticns

All ermplaygas of the Company are enibtled to benefils on retirement, disabilily or death from BT Lifetme Super Employer
Plan ar sther nomimated funds of those employess. The BT Lifetime Super Employer Plan 15 an sccumulation fund,
strtibutians being made by the Company at a rate of B.5% (2017 5.5%) (up to the masirum contnbulion base) of wages
and ealarias on bahalf of the employess. The entites conlibulions are legally enforceable.

(m} Cash and cash equivzlents

For cash law statameanl presenlation purposes. gash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposils held at call wilk
financal nehiutions, olha: shgr-term. highly kguid investments with original maturities of three months or legs that ara
regdily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subiget to an inzigrificant risk of changes in value, and bank
overgrafts. Bank overdrafls are shovn withen bargwings in currenl liabilies on the stalement of inanoal position.

{n} Trade receivablies

Trade receiveblas ane recognised imtially at fair valte and subsequently maasdrad al amart sed cosl. less provision for
doubtful deste. Trade receivables ara dua for settlement ne moes than 30 days rom the date of regognition.

Collggtabnlity of rade recervatles s reviewad on an ongaing basis. Debls which are known (o be uncollectible are writian of
& aroviseen for deubtfil raceivabiles is aslablrshad whan thers 15 obpeclive evrdance that the Company will nor ba abla to
collect alh amounla due acccrding lo the ongnal lerms of receivables. The amcunt of the provigion is the difarence batwest
Ihe asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash lows, discounted at the onginal efective intars s
rate, The amaount of the provision is recogreses in the statement of camprabeansive insotne.



Mew South Wales Rugby Union Ltd
Netes to the financial statements
3 December 2018

1  Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

(o) Goods and services tax (535T)

Revanues, expenses and agssets are recognized nal of the amourt of associaled GST, unless the GST incwrrad s nol
racoverabla from the taxaton authonly. Inthes casa il is recognized 25 par of tha cosl of acquistion of the assel ar as parl ol
1ha expense.

Raceivables and payablas are stated inclugiva of the amount of GET racevasla or pavabla, The fat ameunt al GST
racoverabla from. or payable fo, the taxation aclhonly is incladed with other receivattles o payaes in the staternant of
linancial position

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GET companents of cash fews arising from mwesling or inancing activilies
which are racovarabte from, of payabla to fhe laxahon aotharily, are preserted as operabing cash Row,

(p} Deferred income

Imcame i dafarred on the stalameant of financial pasition unbl it has bean eamed, et which point the deterad incorma is
recognised as income.

(g} Mew accounting standards and interpretations

The sompany bas apphad the follpwang standards snd amendments for the hrst timae for 1he wear ended 31 Dacember
2018

»  AASH 9 Fingncial Instruments
+  AASE 1% Revenue rom Contracts with Custormers

The company Pad to change ils accounting paficies and detsrmingd that lhey did fot have any impacl on the amountis
reccgnised in the current yaar as wall as tha e year 3nd do nol expect o be sigificanily affectad for future vears
follresing the adoplion of AASE 9 and AASE 15,

(tr  Impactk of standards [s50ed hut not yet applled

AAZR 16 was issten i Fabrgary 2016, 10 will rasult in almeost sl legses beng recogmused gn the balance shael, as tha
dishnetion boateaan oporating and financs leases of remavad. Undar ihe new standard. an asset {te righl to uss the
leased ibarm) and a financizl [Eholity (0 pay renlals are raccgrsed. The anly axcopbons arg shot-term gnd low-valie
laases. The agocounling for lessors will not signdicanily change.

The standard will affect grimanly the accounting o company’s cparating leagas. As al tha meperting date, tha campany
has non-cancellable operating lease commitments of 347 730, Howeaver, the company has not yat datedirunad o whal
axlenl these commlments will resull in the recognition of an assat and a lizbility for AUture payments 2rd how this will
affect the company’s profit and classifcation of cash flaws.

Soma of he commilments may ba govearad by e axgaption for short-term and low-vslue leases and some commilments
may refale (o amangerments that wll mot qualify as feases under AASE 16

The standard is mandatory for annual raporting yaars gaginning on o aftar 1 Janwary 2019 The campany doas nal intens
tox adcpl the standand before its etfaclive date.

2 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Esiimates and judgements ara continrally evalualed and are based on histoncal expensnee and olfer factars, incloing
sxpaciatiens of future events thal niay have a hnancial impact on the Company and that are balieved to be reasonable
undar e Circumstarcas.

Maragement bel.eyes that thore are no areas involving a higher dogrea of judgament or zampladily, or when assumphicns
and aslunates are significant to the financaal statananls.
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3 Revehue

From conlinuing cperations

Sponsorship

Match day proceeds - Pramiar nughy
NSV Waratahs Limitad Licansing fes
RA Funding

Participalon Fees

Positive Rughy Foundation

Othar Development Incomea

Qb ravenye
Rental incoma
Other income
Imerest

4 Expenses

Loss from continuing operations ncludes the folfowing specifle

SEQENSRSE:

Deprecialion and eramization
Buildirgs — Contra af axeallenss
Plant gnd eguipment
Inlargible Assets - Trademarks

Tetal dapreciation and amaelisalon

Finanga cosls
Inleresl and Aingnee charges
Tatal hitanes eosls

Fental expenze relating to aperating leases
hinimum (ease paymeants
Total renlal expense refating o aperating laasas

Dafined caninbulign supermnnualion cxpense
Telal daltad eontnbutian superanneabon expenses

& Current assets - Cash and cash equivalents

Czah al bank and n hand

Mew South Wales Rugby Union Lid
Mates Lo the financial statemants
31 December 2016

2018 2017
% 5
£49 606 135,713
285,004 324,393
500,000 1,100,000
1,408,322 1,318 603
1,302 90% 964 078
137,977
404 901
3,703,254 4,245 688
1,151,921
625977 525 084
2,334 S04
4,33t,565 6032 3%
2018 207
% 3
- 218,187
21,282 B.5M
7400 6,742
28,682 233,520
- 16,352
- 168,252
95T 405
957 405
1]
2018 07
$ z
357,603 77001
357,609 770N




Mew South Wales Rughy Unlon Lid
New South Wales Rugby Union Lid Motes to the llnansial statements
Mates to the financial statsments 31 Cecemnber 2048
217 Decernber 2048
9 Mon-current assets - Intangible assets

% Current assets - Trade and other recefvables

Intangible
Trademarks Total
Current assets 4 :
20148 2817
£ 5
Trade receivables 394,945 83 460 Year ended M December 2017
Other assets {a) 46,056 20 410 Ope-_n_lng ret hagk gmount 435983 42 583
Frepayments 4,203 4,474 Additions _ 84978 goa7g
442,704 127,344 Wriltan down vatue of disposals
Cteprecration and amortisation 742
{a) Other racelvables Clasmng net beok arnount
These amaunts relats to sundry deblors and unused cantra sponscrship.
At1 January 2018
Cost 71,957 71,857
_ Accumulated defrocialion andg amortisalion 24738 124,736
7 Current assets - Related party Receivables Nel boak amount { 4?.219} 47.219
2018 17
$ 20$ ¥ear ended 31 Cecember 2014
Opening nat book amount 47,213 47,219
) . Additons 3,276 3,278
Receivables from NSW Waratahs Limited 1 2 531 Written down value of Jisposals
Total other receivables Depresiation and amorisation {7,400 (7,400}
Clasing nel ook, amount 43,085 43085
8 MNon-current asssts = Property, plant & equipment
perty, p quip Al 37 Degember 2916
Cost 75,232 75232
Cenire of Plart and Accumulaled dagraciahon and amartsalion (32,131 {32,130
Excellence equipment Tota! Met book amount 43,095 43 0895
% $ 3
16 Gurrent liabilities — Trade and cther payables
201B 2017
Year ended 31 December 2017 $ $
Cparning nod book amaunt 246051 7,449 253,500
Additiones 26,851 26,551 Trada payablas 148,323 296 544
Wiitten down value of disposals 127 B&d4) {27 BE4! Other payables 773
Depreciation and amaorhsation {213,187) (3,593 (226, 77)
Cloging nel book aracunt 20 408 25 408
At1 January 2018 11 Current liabilities - Deferred revenue
Cost 2N2EH 2reai 2018 217
Accumutaled depreciabon and artotisalion (247 413 (24T 453) 5 £
Met book Bmount 25,408 25 408
Year ended 31 December 2014 g‘:’;‘":rm"& recevad in advance fg&gg gg;gg
Qpaning nat book amaunt 75,408 25 408 437,231 1 '953
Additions 54,348 54 348 ! !
Wrillen down value of dspogals
Cepragiation and amortisation 121.282) {21,282}
Closing net bosk amavnt 58,474 5B 474 i2 Current liabilities - Provisions
AL December 2018
Cost 249 285 243 285 2018 207
Accurmulated dopraciztion and amorbsalion (180811 (190.511) $ ¥
Mel ooy amournt GE.474 B 474
Employss benshls 1 77

2018 NSW RUGBY UNION ANNUAL REPORT




MHew Jouth Wales Rugby Union Ltd Noew South Waltes Rugby Union Ltd

Naotas te the financlal statemants Motes ko the financial statementa
31 December 2078 3 December 2018
13 Non-current liabilities — Provisions 17 Related party transactions
2“;“ 2”; 7 ja} Rugby Australia Limited (*RA")
Make-good on rental pramises 50,000 S0.000 The Company conducts nurierous lransactions with RA in the normal course of the administration of Ihe game of Ruogby

Union in the State ol Mew Soulh Walss. Undar an agreament with RA the annual grants e the Company were 51,408,322 ir
the pariod to 31 Decamber 2018 (2017 $1,316.803).

14 Accumulated funds IB] NSV Waratahs Limfted [("WL")
2048 3T Telal income dunng the perind to 31 Dacember 2018 from N3W Waratahs Limited was 5500 000 (2017: 32 092 26£). This
% & total includes an annual icence fee of $500,200 (2017 §1,100,000] to Mew South fales Rugby Union Lid for granting tham
Cpaning accomulated suplus 1,575,820 5,471 525 he license 1o oparate the Waratahs profassional rughy team.
Toial comprehensive profilt(loss) for the year (259,779 254 255
Batance 31 December 1,316,844 1,575,820

18 Contingencles

The antity had no continganl lisbilikes as at 31 Decamber 2018 (2047 3nil)
15 Remuneration of auditors

During the yaar tha foliawing fess wera paid or payshis for services prowded by the auditer of the Company. 19 Events occurring after the reporting period

Mo ntater or circinslances haye ocourmad subsaguant to year and that has sighificanily affaclad, or may sigmficanty affoct,

En:B 21:'; 7 the cparations of the enpany, Ihe resulis of thass oparations or the state of affars of the gompany in subsaquant financel
YBAMS,
PwC Aualrelia
Audit of financial stataments j2,600 12,500 . . A o
Pl Adstralia 20 Reconciliation of profitfiloss) to net cash flow from aperating activities
DhEr 355U rance Saricas
Total ramunarathon 12,600 12,500 2D$‘IB 2“:.}1 7
. Profit f {loss) for the year [259, 7 T5} 254 295
16 Commitments Depraciation and amartisation 28682 233 520
Laes on safe of ascels 27,885
tease commilments
Change in operating assels and labibltias
08 2017 Decrease ! (incroase) in recarvables 392 8917 (2. 206,494)
$ b3 Ingrease f (decraase) in credilovs & other haimhlies 164,951 (823,249)
Ircreasa { (decraasa) in prowsions 19,123 (315.139)
Committments lar minimum kase payments in refabon to non-cancsllable Mel cash inflow [ (outllow) from operating activitas
operating lsases are payable as follows:
¥Wilhin ong year 47 730 &7.830
Lalar than one year bul not later than five years 89,773
Laler thap five yaars
Commitmenls not recognised in the financial slatements 47,730 138,563
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tlew South Wales Rugby Unkon Ltd
Dlrectors' declaration
3 Decamber 2618

[Hrectors Declaration

As stated In Mole 14a} o the fnanciat stalements, in the direclors’ epinion, the Jompany is not a reporting enlity because
there are no users dependent on general purpose financial siabaments, These are a special purpose financial slalements
that have been prepared o meel Comporations Aot 2007 requiremenls,

The financial slalements have been prapared in accordance with Accounting Standards and mandalory professional
repofing requiremneants 1o the extent described in Note 1.

In the directors’ opinion;

(=) lhe financial stalements and noles set out on pages 5 e 18 are in accordance with the Carporalions Aot 2007,
including:
i} complying with Accountlig Standards and olher mandatory profassional reporing requitements as detailed
above, and the Corporalions Reguifaiions 200M; and
i) giving e true and fair view of the Company's financial pesilion as at 31 Decamber 2018 and of its
parfarmance fof Lhe inangizl period anded on that date; and
L+]] lhere are reasonatle grounds to believe that the Company will be able 16 pay iz debis 35 and when they become

due and payahla,

ratlon is made in accordance wilh a resolution of the directors.

Roger Davis

Directar

Sydnay
16 April 2018
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Independent auditor’s report
Ta the members of New South Wales Roghy Unton Lid

(e opfitions
in our opinion

The accumpal:l}'ing financial report of New South Wales Rughy Urivn Ltd {ihe Company) isin
accordance wilh the Corporarions Act zoor, including;

f2}  giving a true and Fairview of the Company's financial position as at 31 December 2018 and of its
financial performance for the year then ended

{b)  romplying with Australian Accounting Standards to the extent described in Note « and the
Corporations Regueloiions zpul.

Whar we heve audited
The financial report comprises;

the balance sheeat as at 31 December 2018
the statement of comprehensive incume for the year Uen ended
» the stotement of changes in eguity for the year ther ended
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended
* the motes tn the: finaucial statements, which inclede 3 surnimary of significant acesunting policies
the directors’ declaration.

Hebsis for uption

We conducted gur audit in avcordance with Aostralian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilitics under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilifies for the audit of the financial
report seclion al oar repert,

We believe that the audit evidence we have ¢htained is suffivient and appropriate to provide a basis fur
QUF Opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the auditor independence reguirements of the
Corporations Act 2001 and the cthical requirerments of the Accounting Professional and Ethical
Standards Buard's APKS 110 Onde of Fiehics far Professional Accounitants (the Code) that are relevant
1o our audit of the finaneial report in Australia, We have also fulfifled our other ethicai responsibilities
In accordance with the Code.

Emiphasts of inatter - basis of acemont ing and restriction on wse

We draw atlention 1o Nite 1 in the (inancial report, which describes the basis of accounting. The
financial report hias been prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the divectors' financial reporting
respunsibilitics nnder the Corparations Act 2001 1o prepare and distribute Anancial stelements 1o the
members. As ¢ result, the financial report may not he suitable for teport is

PricewaterhouseCoopers, ABN 52 7Eo 4377 757

One Taternational Towers Sydney, Wetermmans Quay, Burangaran, RO ROX 2650, SYONEY NSW 2oor
T: +612 8265 G000, F! +81 2 8265 G400, WLHD BLUIC O w20

Lavel 1 1PS0, 16y Mocquarie Strecl, Parramatls NSW 150, PO Box 1155 Parramatia NSW 212g

T. +0i 2 gfig 2470, F: v & K200 QU006 0L LN Coina_ g




intended solely for New South Wales Rugby Union Ltd and its members and should not be used by
parties other than New Sooth Wales Rugby Union Ltd and its members. Qur opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

fHber fuformdfan

The directors are responsible for the other infarmation. The athes information comprises Uhe
infarmation included in the Annual report for the year ended 41 December 2018, bl doss not inchude
the financial reporl and our suditor’s cepart therean . Prigr to the date of Uhis auditar's veport, the other
informalion we oitained included the Ditectors' report.

Our apinion on the financial report does not cover the other infarmation and accordingly we do not
express any form of agsurance conclusion thereon,

In coneection with oar awdit of the Taaocial reporl, ouc responsibilivy is to read the other information
and, in doing 50, consider whether the other anformation is matenially inconsistent with the Anancial
repart or our knowledge ebtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated,

If, hazed on the wnrk we have performed on the other information obtained pricr to the date of this
auditor’s repoet, we conclude that there is & material misstatement of this other information, we ave
requited to report thal fact, We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responarhiities of the cfivectors for the Bngneiol ropeet
I . !

The directars of the Company are responsible fur Lhe preparativn of the financial report that gives a
truc and fair view and have determined that the basis of preparation described in Mote J to the
financial report is appropriate to meest the requirements of the Corporeiions Act 2004 and is
appropriate to meet the needs of the members. The directors’ responsibility also includes such internat
contrel as the divectors determing is necesaary o engble the prepacation of the financial report that
gives atrue and fzir view and is free from material misstatement, whether doe to fraud or creor.

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible lor assessing the ability of the Company
to contisne as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the gouing cuncent basis of accounting unless the directors eilher intend Lo liguidate the Company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic atternative but to do so.

Avelitens vesporsibilitios for e audid of the financial ropoct

OQur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whele is free
from material misstatement, whether due tofeand or error, and to issue an aeditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in zecordance with the Australian Auditing Slandards will always detect a material
misstatemeny when it exists. Misstatements ean arise {rom fraud ar error and are considered material
if, individually o1 in the aggrepate, they could reasonably be expected 1o influence the econoamic
decisions of asers taken on the basis of the hinancial report.

A further Jdescription of oor responsititities for the audit of the financial report is located at the
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website at:
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http:/fwww.suash.gov.av/auditars_tresponeibilities far4.pdf. This description farms part of our

auditor's report.

AA— 4

PricewaterhouseCoopers

T M z:'é —
Jemes MeElvogue
Partner

Sydney
16 April 2o1g




S arata s L ited

ABN: 99 141 002 904

Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Report

31 December 2018

These financial stalements are the consolidated financial stataments of the consalidatad enlity consisting of NSW Waratahs
Lirnited and ite subsidiaries. The ngncial stalemenis are presented in the Australian currency.

MSW Waratahs Limitad is a gompany imitad by guarantae, incorporated and doemiciled in Australia. NSW Waralahe Limitod
was incorparated on 17 December 2009, |ts registered office and principal place of businass 15

Cavid Fhillipe Eparts Complax
Banks Awvers

Bracayelle

MNESW 2032

A dascripticn of the nalure of the Company's operations and its principal activitias is ineluded in the directers' repart an
pages 1-2, which is nol part of these finarcial statemeants.

The inanwsl statements were authorised forissue by tha directors an 5 Apeil 2019, The Company has the power to amend
and reissus the finencial statements.
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NSW Waratahs Limited

Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Report
For the year ended 31 Becember 2018
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NSW Waratahs Limited
NSW Waratahs Limited Directors’ Report

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Directors' Report

For the year ended 31 December 2018

B. Likely devalopments
_ _ _ _ o The Cornpany will continue fo pursue its sirategic plans, develop its business base and ensure the
Your direclors present their rapon on lhe consolidaled enlity {referred to hereatter as the Company) consisting strangthening of its business share resulling in continued profitatilily.
of MSW Waratzhs Limiled and the entities i conlrollad far the year ended 31 December 2018.
1. Direct Furthter information about likely developments in the operations of tha Company and the expected resuils of
. Lurectors those operalions in future financial years has not been included in this report because disclosure of the
_ _ _ _ infermation would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice ta the Company.
The direclors of tne Company at any hme during or since the end of the financial yaar are.
Roger Davis (Chairman) 9. Indemnification and insurance of officers and auditors
Ross Alan Gran:
Kerry Chikarovski Indemmnification
David Terry Gifflin
Nitholas James Phipps {appointed an 2110318} Since the end of the previous financial year, the Company has not indemnified or made a relevant agreement
Anlhony Crawtord {appointed on 08/12/18) for indemnifying against a liahility any person who is or has been an officer or auditor of the Company,
Arthur Laundy (appointed on 01,0318 & resignaed oh 06/12/18)
Faul Timmins {resigned on 061218 -
Darmien Fitzpatrick (resigned an 21/03/18) Insurance premiums
- it During the fingncial year the Company has paid premiums |n respect of directors” and officers' liability for
2.  Principal activities : )
legal expenses and insurance cohlracts for the year ended 31 Decembar 20M8. Such insurance contracts
The principal continuing actmibies of lhe Company during the course of the year ended 31 December 2018 IR _agaln_st certain |labl|lt'y" {EUb]ECt o EPECE{IE exclusions) persons who are or have been direclors or
were the business operations and management af a professional rigby union team. Thers wars no significant exegcutive officers of the Company.
charges in the nature of the activities of the Company during the year.
The directors have not included details of the nature of the liabilities covered or the amount of the premiurms
3. Review of aperations paid n respect of the directors’ and officers’ liability and legal expenses insurance contracts, as such
disclosure is grohibited under the terms of the contract.
The operating loss for the year ending 31 December 2018 for the Company amaunted 1o $256 930 (2017,
$240,062 toss) 10. Auditor's independence declaration
4. Significant changes in state of affairs & copy of the auditer's independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act
_ ) _ _ _ 2001 is set out on page 3.
There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Company during the firancial year,
5. Limited by guarantee 1. Auditor
. . : _ . . . : 2001
The Company i a company limited by guarantes. In the avent of the Company being wound up each member FricewaterhouseCoopers continues in office in accardance with section 325 of the Corporations Act
is liabie to contribule to the debts of the Company incurred whilst they were a member or within one year
from them ceasing o be a member, or for the purpose of adjusting the rights of the contribulors amangst , . . . .
Memselves, such amount as may be required not exceeding 510, This report is made in accordance with a resolution of directors
6. Proceedings on behalf of the Company
Mo persen has apphed to the Court under seclion 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 lor leave 1o bring
proceedings on hehalf of the company, of to intervene in any proceaedings to which the company is a party.
For the purpose of taking responsitility an bahalf of the eompany far all or part of those proceedings.
Wo proceedings have been brought or inlervensd inon beball of the Company with leave of the Court under ot
saction 237 of the Corporations Aot 2001
Roger Davis
7. Malters subsequent to the end of tha financial year Director
Sydney
There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any ilem, 16 April 2318
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transaction or event of 2 matenal and unusual nature likely, in the opinicn of the dwectors of the Company,
to affect sgnificantiy the operalions of the Company, the results of hose operations, or the state of aflairs of
the Company, in fubure financial years.




Auditor’s ndependence Decluration

As lead avditor for the audil of NSW Waratahs Limited for the year ended 31 Decentber 2018, § declare

that to the best of my knowledge and heliel, there have been:

(a)  nocontraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in

celation be the andit: and

(h)  nocontraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation 1o the audit.

This decluration i in respect of NSW Waratzhs Limited and the entities it controlled during the

period.

ot a

Jarmes McElvague
Partner
PricewaterhouseCoopets

PricewnterhowscCoopers, ABN 52 780 4353 757

Sydney
16 Aprl 2010

One Internotional Towers Sydney, Watermans Quoy, Sarangares, GPG BOX 2650, SYDNEY NS 2o0m

T+ 01 2 82606 ooo0, Fr 16r 2 8266 0040, WWIL UM, can: oy

Level 11, 1PRQ, 160 Movquarie Sireet, Porromatta NSW atsn, PO Box 1155 Parromalte NEW s124
T #6812 otng 28760, o it 2 8260 G0og, Wil fwe.com.aur
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NSW Waratahs Limited

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Revenua from continuing operations

Clher income

Professional rughy axpenseas

Corporale expenses

Mew South Wales Rugby Union Ltd Licence fee and ather Crants
Results from operaling activities

Finance income
Finance expense
Ne! finance income

Met prefit [ {loss) for the year
Other comprebensive income for the vear
Total Comprehensive Incomef{Loss) for the year

Mote

415

(3]

2018
5

14,316,447

609,155
(13,043,790}
(1.893.761)
{500,000}
{511,949}

228,720
{3,704)

225,19

{286,930}

(206,930

Fhe above consoldated sfatement of comprefensive nocante shoold be read in conjunclion with the

BCCORIDEMNYINY ROtes.

2?7
¥
15,277,861
478,746
{12,506 743)
(2,596,247)
{1.100,000)
[446,283)

218,274
{12.050)
206,224

(240,062}

{240,082)




NSW Waratahs Limited NSW Waratahs Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
As at 3 December 2018 For the year ended 31 December 20138
Note 2018 2017
] L3 i
ASSETS Aceurmulated _
c . ' surplus f {lcsses) Total equily
urrent assets . Note % 5

Cash and cash equivalents B 2011731 2793002
Zash in Term Deposits B 4,750,123 4,200,121 Balance at 1 Janwary 2017 {205,856] {205,856}
Trade and other receivables 7 148,707 376 533 Frofil f floss) for the year (240 062} {240, 062)
Frepayments 30,497 16340 Total comprehensive income f {loss) for the year (240 0521 {240,062}
Tatal current assats 7,308 OR6

5,930,058 306,08 Balance at 11 December 2017 14 {445 918} {445,018}
Non-Current assets. Balance at i January 2018 {445,918} {445,918)
Cas=h in Term Deposits & 2,500,000 Profil ! (loss) for the year {286 230) (266.9:30)
Fropety, plant and edguipment B 145 878 228 448 Total comprehensive income f {loss) for the year {286,930} {286,930)
Total non-current assets 145,678 2,728,448

Balance at 31 DPecember 2078 14 (732 848} f732,848)
Total assets 7,054,336 10,115,434 The above corsohidated statement of changes in squity should be read in conjunchion with the accompanying
hotes.

LIABILITIES
Curren! liabilitiea
Trade and cther payables 9 2,202,381 2914643
FProvisions — Employves Entitlements 13 171,837 158 245
Deferred revenue 10 2083127 2833612
Total current liabilities 4 457 325 5,920 501
Non-Cutrent ltabllities
Provisions — Employes Entitbements il 58,722 21,851
Deferred revenue 19 3,301,737 4 550,000
Total non-current Liabilities 3,360,459 8831,851
Total liabilities 1817784 10,561,352
Net assets {732,848} {445,518)
EGUITY
Accumulaled sumpius f (losses) 14 (T32.848) (445,918)
Total Equity {732,848} (45.518)

The above conaciidated balance shee! should be read in confunclion with Ihe accormpanying notes,
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NSW Waratahs Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from customers
Cash papd o supplers and employees

Interest received
Finante costs (paid)

Ne! cash inflow f (outflow! from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Acilisition of property, plant and equipment
Withdrawal / (Invesiment} ih lerm deposits

MNe! cash inflow f [outflow) from investing activities

Cash flows from financing aciivities
MNet cagh inflow f [outflow) financing activities

el increase f (decraase) in cash and cash equivalenls

Cash and cash equivalenis at the baginning of the yaar

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

fote 2018
3

14,825 457
{17578, 77%)
(2,948,322}

228,720
(3,701)

(2,723,303}
(5.938)
1,940 808

1.941.042

(F82,261)
2.783.5992

E 2,001,739

NSW Waratahs Limifed

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

1. Basis of preparation

Flia
%
{a) Statement of compliance
18 B46 203 .
(15,557,557} In the directors’ opinion, lhe Company is not a reporting entity because lhere are no users dependent
3,288 B4G on general purpase consalidated financel slatements
218774 These are specidl puipose consolidated financial statements that have been prepared far the sole
120534 purpose of camplyng wilh the Corporalions Agt 2007 requirements to prepare and distribube
congolidated hnancial statements to the members and must nol be used for any other purpase. The
3,404 88T drectors have determined that the accounting policies adopted are appropriate to meet the needs of
the members.
(163,057} The consolidaled financial statements have been prepared 0 aocordance with the recogmticn and
(6,700,121} mezsurement principles of Australian Accouenlng Standards and Inlempretatons isseed by the
f t Ausiralian Accounling Standards Board and the Corporations Aot 2007, It confains ony those
6893178 dizglosures considered necessany by the directors to meet the needs of he members. NSW Waralahs
16,893,178} Lirmited 15 & rert-for-profit endly for the purpose of preparing the consclidated financial stalements.
The Company 15 a company mited by guarantee, incorporaled and domicied n Australia, The
address of the Company's registered office and principal place of business is Gavid Phillips Sports
Complex, Banks Avenue, Qacewalle, NSW 2032
{3.398.3111 The cansalidated financial statements of NSW Waralahs Limited {"the company”] for the year anded
31 December 2018 were authotised for issue in ccordance wilh a resolution of the directors on 5 Agpril
5,192,303 2019 and cover NSW Waralzhs Limited as a consolidated enlily a8 required by the Corporalions Act
2001
2,793,902

NEWY Waratahs Limited is the parent and ultimale parent entily of the group.

Tha above consolidated sfaterment of cash fows showld be read in conjunciion with the accormpanying notaes

{b} Basis of measurement

The consolidated finzncial staterments have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost
convention. The concept of acervals accounting has been adopted in the preparation of the
consohdated financial statements. The accounting policies have been consislentiy applied to all years
prasented. unless otherwise stated.

(¢} Principles of consalidation

The consolided financial stalements incorporale the assets and liabitities of all subsidiznies of NSW
Waratahs Limited ("Company” or "parent entiy”} as at 31 December 2018 and the results of all
subsidiaries for the year then ended, NSW Waratahs Limited and s subsiianes together are refemed
ta in these consclidated financial statements as Lthe Company of the consolidaled entily.

Subsidiaries are all entilies {irncluding =pecial purpose entities) over which the Company has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies, generally acocompanying 4 shareholding of more than
cne-hall of the vating nghls. The existence and affzcl of polential voling nghts thal are curpenliy
exercisable or convertible are considerad when assessing whether the Company eontrols another
entity.

Subsichanes are fully consolidated from the date on which control is ranaferred 1o the Company. Thay
are de-consolidated from the date thal eonirel ceases. The aoquisition method of accounbing is used
to account for business combpinalions by the Company.

i



NSW Waratahs Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statenients

For the year ended 31 December 2018

1. Basis of preparation (continued}

{c)

{d)

{e)

n

Principles of consolidation

Intercompany Irangactons, balances and unrealised gaing on Irgnsactions hetween Group
cormpanies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
eviderce of e mpsirment of the asset ransferred. Accounting poboies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary 1o ensure consislency with the pelicies adopted by the Company

Funetional and presentation currency

These financial stalemenls are presented in Auskralizn dollars, which s the Company's functional
CAUITENCY

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparsban of financial statements requires management & make judgements, eshimales and
assumptions thal affect the application o accounting policies and the reported amounts of assels,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual resulis may differ from these eslimatas.

The estimates angd associated assumplions are based on historical experience and vanous other
factors Ihat are believed to be reasonable under the circumslances, the rasuits of which form the basis
af making the judgemenlts ahout carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readiy apparent
from other sources.

Estimates and underying assumphons are reviewed on an ongong basis, Revisions to accounbing
aslimates are recagnised in the period inowhich the estimate is revised and in any fivre periods
affecled.

Managemeant believes that there are ng areas involying a fagher degree of judgement or complexiby,
or where assumpltions and estimates are significant to the financial stalements.

Going concern

A5 al 31 Decamber 2018, the Company has negalive equily of $732 848 (2017 neqative equity of
5445 918), and 2 working capial surplus of $2 487,733 (2017, surplus of $1.457 485). The Company
has also experienced operating losses of 286,930 and negative operating cash flows of §2,723 303
during the linangial year ending an that date, We note Lhe lotal hakilities of lhe company includes
$5,384 864 of deferred revenue, which will be recognised as revenue in subsegquent financial periods.
The cash and term deposils on hand al the end of the financial year lotal 6,761,854 which is suMicient
fo meel lhe current liabifities of the company.

As g result of these matters, the directors believe that the Company will be successiul in meeting Js
debls and commitments as they fall due and, accordingly, have prepared the fnancsal regort an a
going concenn basis.

NEW Waratahs Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. Significant accounting policies

The paincipal actounbng policies adoptad in the preparation of the consolidated inanaial statemenls are set
out Delow. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise staled

()

{o)

{c)

Cash and cash egulvalents

For cash flow statement presentation purposes, tash and cash eguivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, Righly liquid investrments with oniginal
maturities of Ihree months or less that arg readily convedible o kngwn ampunts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafls are
shown wilhin borrowings in current liabilites on the statement of financial posilion.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recogrised at ertginal invoice amownt and do nol Gear inlerest. Trade
receivables ara dua for setflemeant no more than 30 days from the date af recognition.

Collectakility of irade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be
uncollectible ars wrilten off. A provision for doublful racervables is established when there i
abjective evidence thal the Cormpany will nol be able 1o eoltact all amounks due accarding Lo lhe
original terims of recewvables. The amount of the provision is the difference batween the asset's
carrying amount and the prasent value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the onginal
effeclive intarest rate. The amount of the provision is recognised in the statement of comprehensivea
inSome

Property, plant and aguiprment
{i} Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, piant and eguipment are measured al cost less ascumulated depreciation and
accumulated mparment losses except lor owner occupied office building,

Vhen parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have diferent useful lives, Lhey are
aecounted for as separate tems of property, plant and equipment.

Gaing and losses on disposal of an lem of propeny, plant and equipment are determmed by
comparing the proceeds from disposal wilh the canying amounl of property, plant and equipment and
are racognised net within “gther income” in profit or [oss.

{ii} Depreciation

Depreciation is recogniced in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimaled usaful kves of
each part of an item of propery, plant and equipment. Land is not depreciated. The estimated useful
Iives for the Company are:

*  Team and oifice equipment 4 years
«  htotor vehicles 5 years
+  Computer and IT squipmeatt 3-4 years

Depraciation melhods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed ab each reporing penod,
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NSW Waratahs Limited

Nates to the Consolidated Financial Staternents

Far the year ended 31 Decemhber 2018

2. Significant accounting policies {continued)

(d)

{e)

if}

{9)

Impairment of assets

Al aach reporling pariod the entity assesses whelher herg is any mdicalion thal rrdividual assels are
impaired. YWhere impairment indicatars exist, recoverable amount is determined and impairment losses
ate recognised in the stalemant of comprehensive Income where the azsel’s campng value exceeds
its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of an assel's fair valug less cosls Lo sell
and value in use. For the purpose of assessing value in use, the astimated [uture eash flows a@re
discounled to lher presenl value vsing a pre-tax discount rate thal reflects cumment market
assessments of the time value of mohey and the risks specific to the assel.

Employee benefits

{it Other long-term employee benefits

The Company's nel oblrgation in respecl of long-term employee benefits is the amount of fulure benefit
that employees have aarned in returm for their servics in the corrent and prior pertods plues relaled on
costs,

{ify Short-term benefits

Liabilities for emploves benefits for wages salanes, annual leave and sick lgave represant present
obligilions resulbng from employees services provided o reporing date and are calculated at
undisecunted amounts based on remuneralion wage and salary rates thal the Company gxpacts to
pay as ak reporting date including relaled ancost, such as workers compensation msurance and payroll
tax.

Provigions

A provision is recognised if, 85 2 resull of a pasl event, the Company has a presenllegal or construcinve
obligation that can be eshimated relizbly, and it iz probable that an aulilow of econamic benshts will be:
required to setlle the obligakon. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
fows at 3 pre-tax rale that reflecls cortenl markel assessments of the tme value of monsy and the
Fisks specific to the liability

Revenuse
(i} Memberships, match day tickets and grants

Revenue from memberships, match day lickels and grants is measured at fair value and taken lo
incame in the period o which 1l relates

NSW Waratahs Limited

Notes o the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. Slgnitfcant accounting policies (continued)

{2

{h)

fi}

i}

Hevenue {(continued)
(i Stadium Revenue

Incenlives received from host stadiums for matches played are measured at far value and taken o
ineame in the pertod inowhich it relates

(ifi} Sponsorships

Revenue from sponsorship is measured at fair value and recogresed evenly on a monthly basis wilkim
e hinancial year o which it relates. Sponsorship advances are deferred until earned pursvant (o the
sponsorship agreement,

{iv} Interestincome

Intzrest incame s recognised in the profit or loss as it acorues using the elfective interest method.

Finance incoame

Finanee itcome comprises imerest mcome on funds nvested (inciuded available-for-sgle financial
assets) and gains on the disposal of svailable -for-sale financizl assels. Interest incamsa is recognised
A% il 3oorues in profit or [ogs, vsing the effective interes! method.

Tncome fax

The company is exempt from income tax in accordance with the provisions of saction 23(g) of the
fncome Tax Assessmert Act

Parent entity fnancial infermation

The financial information for the parent entity, NSW Waratahs Limited, disclosed innole 12 has been
prepared on the same basis as the consolidated hnancial statements, excepl a5 sel out below:

{  Investments in subsidiaries

Inveshmenls b subsidianes are accoonled for al cost in lhe finanasl stalements of NSW Waralahs
Limited. Dwidends received lrom associates are recognised in the parenl entity’s profil of loss, rather
lhan being deducted fram the camrying amount of these investments.

{ii] Financial guarantees

Where the parent entty has provided financial guaranlees in relation to loans and payables of
substares fpr no compensahon, the far wvalues of these guarantees are accounted for as
coniribubions and recognised as part of the cast of the invesiment



NSW Waratahs Limited NSW Waratzhs Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018 For the year ended 31 December 2018
2. Slignificant accounting policies {continued} 3. Revenue
FiF:) 2017
(k} Goods and services tax From continuing operations B $
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amounl of goods and services tax (GST), Sponsarship income 3.098,577 3.866.018
except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxalion aulhority. In these Corporale hospitality o 231,701 214,691
circumstances, the G5T is recognised as part of the cost af acquisition of the asset or a3 par of the Malchday membership and tickeling proceeds 2,185 416 2,542 pE2
EAPENEE, Stadiurn rebates 2493 747 2491424
Membership subscriptions 270,862 320,735
Recamvables and pavablas are stated with the amount of GST included  The nel amounl of GST Lisensing reven e 151,391 164,732
recoverable from. of payable to. the ATO isincluged a3 a current assel or lisbility n the balance sheel ARL funding g G0, Do 5677 406
Tatal revenue from contlnuthg operations 14,516,447 15,277 981
Cash flows are included in the statement of cash lows on a gress basis, The G3T compenents of cash
flows arising from inveshing and financing activities which are recoverabile from, or payatle (o, the AT
are classified as operating cash flows . 4. Expenses
2018 2017
{k} Beferred revenue $ §
Income is deferred on the balance sheat until it has been earned, at which point the deferred income . .
is recognised as income. ﬁ.udﬂor.relrn uneration 46,518 45,328
Depreciation 91,526 61.026
{I} ~Hew accounting standards and interpretations Emplayee expenses 3,776,450 3.713.839
Legal fees £1.492 36,797
The company has applied the lollowing standards and amendmenls for the first ime for the year Markelng cosis 311,306 EB5,253
ended 31 Decamber 2018, Match day axpendituna 1-??2| 160 1,255,":"?2
* AASB 9 Financal Instruments Membership servicing costs 226,098 285,318
+  AASH 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers NSWR Licence fee S04, D00 1,100,000
_ _ . _ Qverheads — other 2o 81 285,294
The company had 10 change its accounting policies and determined thal they dd nal have any Properly charces 463 516 1 305 456
impact on the amounts recegnised in the current year as well &s the prior year and do not expect to perLy . g . ' T
be- significantly affected for future years following the adoption of AASB 9 and AASE 15, Sponsership servicing cosls 675,384 758,504
Waralzhs leam costs 211 277 6666, 904
) Imipacs of standards issucd but nat vet applied Total expenses 15,437,551 16,215,040
AASE 18 was issued in February 201€. 1 will result in almost 2l leases baing recognised on the
balance sheel, as the distinction betwean operating and finance leases is removed. Under the new
standard, an asset {the right to use the leased item) and a financal liablity to pay rentals are . )
recogrised. The only exceptions are shor-lerm and low-value leases. The sceounting for lessors 3. Finance income and expense
will not significantly change.
2018 2097
The slandard will affecl primarily Ihe aocounting for company's aperating leases. As at the 5 %
reporting date, the company has non-cancellable operating lease commalnients of $1,9281 116
Howewver, the company has not yet determined o what exfent these commitments will resultin the . .
reccgnition of an asset anc a fability For fulure payments and how this will affect the company's Finance income 224,720 218.274
profit and classificalion of cash liows. 5 h (.70 (12,063
inance charges . Uad)
Some of the comimitmeants may be covered by Lhe exeeption for shart-lerm and low-vatie i2ases Met finance income 225,019 206,221

and some commitments may relate Wo amangernents that will not qualify a5 leases under AASH 16

The standard is mandatory for annual reporting years beginning on or after 1 Janceary 20149, The
company does nol intend 1o adopl the standard belore ifts effective date.
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NSW Waratahs Limited NSW Waratahs Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013 For the year ended 31 December 2018

. Cash i
6 and cash equivalents 9. Trade and other payables

2018 2017
3 H 2018 2017
Current $ L
Bank and cash balances 2011731 2,793,992
Current — Term deposits 4750123 4200121 Current
6,761,854 6,994,143 Trade payables 351,883 440 057
Related party payakles
NEWRU ) 1,446 895 2,156 3980
Non - Current -RaA, 11 D45
Term deposits 2,500,000 ’
il Marn-lrade payables an
Cash and cash equivatents 2,500,000 . payahles and acarued expenses e ey
mployment habilities 125,553 135,384
Teotal trade and other payables 2,202,361 2934643
7. Trade and other receivables
1¢. Oeferred revenue
EHE 2017 2018 2017
: 1 5 £ ¥
Current Current
Trade receivables 161,070 340 547 Membersing revenue 555,446 1,111,800
Provision for bad debits (14,363) {14,364} Other 1.527 681 1.724.013
2883127 2835613
Trade and other receivables 146,707 376,533 Non-currest
income received in advance 3301737 4,550 000
. 3304737 4,250,000
8. Preperty, plant and equipment
2018 2T . . . .
$ $ Income recerved in advance relates to upfronl payments received from confraciual armangements with
SpONGONS,
Team ang office equipinent at cosl 249,710 245 856
Accumulated deprecation (161,604) {113,663) 14. Contractual commitments
84,106 132,183
Player remuneration commitments
Computer equipment at cosl 176,235 175,155
Accumulated degreciation {118,453 {78,900 Commitments for the payment of salaries and other remuneration under long-term player conlracts in
57772 96 255 exizstence at the reporing date but not recognised as liabilities is as follows:
2018 2017
Tetal preperty, plant and equipment 145 878 228,448 s §
Wilhin one year 5,893 650 5,231,345
Between one and five years 4 05,742 2 BAA 00
Total commitments 9,908 392 7,948,145
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NSW Waratazhs Limited NSW Waratahs Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018 For the vear ended 31 December 2018
i1. Contractual commitments (catinued} 13. Provisions
2018 2017
Lease contnttments L L]
Current
Commmitrants for mimmum lease paymeants 0 relation 1o non-cancellable operating leases are payable as Al feave 171,837 159 245
Feltoywes: 171,837 159,245
2018 207 Non-Current
$ 5 Long sarvice leave 58722 81.851
- 58,7 1,854
¥Within one year 515,208 £13.077 6,722 81,85
Between one and five years 1,465,608 1.881.116
Total commitments 1,981,116 2,594,183 14. Accumulated surplus / [losses)
License Fee 1o New South Wales Rughy Union Ltd 2016 2017
5 s
NSW Waratahs Limited pays an annual licence fe to NSWRL for granting lhem the hcenge to vse Warstshs
intellectusl property. The minimum annwal licence fes payable under the agreement is $500.000 for the year Qpening balance [445,918] 1205,856)
ending 31 December 2018 and for the duration of the Trade mark agreement. which expires on 31 December Met profitiloss) for the year ' '
2020 with an gption tg extend p 4 {286,930} (240,062}
Clasing balance {752 8480 (445 918)
12. Parent entity financial information
a} Summary financial information
{a} ary 15. Related party transactions
The ndrvidual financial statements for the parent entity show the following aggregale amounts
P ¥ g agareg {a)  Rupby Australia “RA”
2018 217 .
g % The Campany conducls transactions with RA in lhe normal course of managing ¥Waralahs rugby in the
State of Mew South Wales. MSW Waratahs Limited received $5 605 000 in funding dunnhg 2018 {2017
55,400,000} [rorm RA under the Super Rughy participalion deed Thiz amoeunt excludes any Wallaby player
Currenl assefs 6.511,135 9,369,327 pavments. ) per Rughy panicip ¥ ¥ playe
Total assats 6511235 9,365,428 (v  Mew South Wales Rugby Untan Lid "NSWRU"
Currant liabilities {0 BBE, 453} {12,681 738) HN3W Waratahs Limiled pays an anmual koerce fee io NSWRL for grantmg them bhe licence to use the
Total liabitities (9.888.453) {12 691 738) Waratahs and other related trademarks. In 2018 NSW Waratahs Limiled paid NSWRU $500.000 (2017:
Relained earnings [3.377.318) 13.222.311) 51,100,000 in ficence lees under the licensing agreementl.
Profil or {loss) for lhe year (2.831,3545) (3,116 455)

NSW Waratahs Limited owns 100% of the shares in Waratans Rugby Pty Lid, acting a5 agent for KNSWY
Wearatahs Limited, managng the professanal ¥Waratahs rughy leam in Mew South Wales,

{b} Cenlingent fiabilties of the parent entity

The parent entity did not have any contingenl lizbilities as at 31 December 2018
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NSW Waratahs Limited
N5SW Waratahs Limited

Directors’ Declaration
Notfes to the Consolidated Financial Statenients

For the year ended 31 December 2018 As stated in Note 1(a) to the consolidated financial stataments, In the directors' opinion, the Company is not a
reporting entity because lhere are no users dependent on general purposs consolidated financial statements.
These are spacial purpose consdlidated financial statements that have been prepared to meet Corporations Act

. 2007 reguirements,
16, Contingencies

The consolidgated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting Standards and
' i i i i 1.
The entily had no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2018 (2017: $nil) mandatory professional reposting requirements to the extent described in Note

In the directors’ apinion;

17. Events oscurring after the reporting period 1, The consalidated financial stalements and nates set out on pages 4 to 19 are in accordance with the

. Corporations Aot 2001, including:
Mo matter or circumslances have gooumed subsequent to year end that has significantly affected, or may

significantly affect. the operations of the company, lhe resuits of those operations or e stale of affairs of {a)

complying with Accounting Standards and other mandstory professional reporting reguiremenls as
the company in subsequent financial years.

detaited ahove, ahd the Corporalions Regulations 2001, and

18. Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities (b}  giving a true and fair view of the Company's financial position as al 31 December 2018 and of its
performance for the financial period ended on thal dake; and,
2018 2017
5 1 2. There are reasanable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debis as and when they
Cash flows from operating activities become due and payable.
Prolit{loss) for the year {286,930 {240.062) _ . . ; P
Adjustients for; This declaration is made in accordance with & resolution of the Board of Directors and is signed for and on behalt
Depreciation 91,526 61.026 of the directors by
Qperating profit before changes in working capital and provisions 195,404} (179,036)
(Ineresse) ! decrease in rade and other receivables 215,660 B3 A52
Increase f (decrease) in trade and other pavables (732282 2175114
Increass S (decrease) in deterrad revenus {2,000,749} 1,010,573
Increass S (dacraase) in provisions {10537} {15,038
Met cash inflow f {outflow) from operating activities {2,723,30%) 3494 8ar¥

3

Roger Davis
Director (Chizirman)
Sydney

16 Agpril 2019
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independent quditor’s report
Ta the members of WSW Waratahs Limited

Crar eyaitident
In our opinion:

The accompanying financial report of NSW Warztahs Limited (the Company) and its controllad
endilies (togelher the Group) is in accordance with the Corporarons Aot 2o0d, including:

fa]  piving 2 troe and fair vigw of the Grong's Anancial position as ar 31 December 2018 and of its
financial performanes for the year then ended

(b} comphying with Australian Accounting Standards to the cxtent described in Wote 1 and the
Corporalions Regudations 2001,

What we have audited
The Gronp linancial reporl cumprises:

the eonzolidated halarce sheet ag at 31 Deceraber 2o1RB
the sonsalidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended
. the conzolidated statement of changes in aquity for the year then ended
. the consnlidated statement of eash flaws for the year then ended
1) Lhee reotes Lo e consolideted Goemncil statements, which inglude a summary of significant
accounting policies
the directors” declaration,

Biasis for opdnion

We sonducted our audit in accordanee with Australian Anditing Standards. Qur responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibifittes for the audit of the financial
report section of ouv report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
DUt SEINLON.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordanee with the auditor independence requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001 and the cthical reguirements of the Acconnting Professional and Ethica)
Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountonts {the Code) that arc relevant
to our zudit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfzlled our other sthiesl responsibilities
in accordance with the Code,

Finprivrsin of matter - hasis of aeempnting ond vesorictlon o wuse

We draw attention o Note 1 in the financial repord, which deseribes the basis of accounting. The
financial repast has been prapared for the purpose of flflling the directors' inancial reporting
responsibilities under the Corporations Act 2001 to prepare and distribute financizl statements to the

PrismaaterhouwieCnopers, ABN 5o 780 433 757
One Tnteraetivntad Towvers Syduey, Wotermans Quoy, Barangsron, GPO ROX 2650, SYTINEY NSW 2001
T +hr 2 Bo0d o000, Foo+ar 2 8200 QQoge), sitie jrbee Lo, @i

Fewvel i, 1PEQ, 169 Macquarie Sivect, Par ramatta NSW 150, PO Box 1155 Parramatis NS 2124
T: 1010 2 gogu 2476, F +A1 2 Bard iy, 1 DRy come_an
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inembers, As 3 resull, the financial report may not be suitabie for gnother purpose. Our report is
intended solely for N3W Waratahs Limited and its members and should nat be used by parties other
than NE8W Waratahs Limited and ity members. Qur opinion is not meodified in respect of this matter.

Othrer fufirniation

The directors are responsible for the other inforamation. The other information camyprises the
infprmation included in the Anaval cepert for the vear ended 51 December 2018, but docs not include
ihe [inancial report and our suditor’s reporl theceon . Prior vo the date of this auditor’s report, Lhe other
infurmation we ohtained included the Direciors' report,

Cwar opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we deaot
express any form of assurance conelusion therson.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, oue responsibility is ta read the other informalion
and, in doing so, consider whether the other jnformation is materially inconststent with the financial
report or our kpowledge obtained in the andait, or oltherwase appeats (6 be matenally misstated.

i¥, baged on the work we have performed or the other information obtained prior ta the date of this
auditor’s report, we caonclude that there is 2 material misstatement of this other information, we are
requized Lo report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard,

Responsibilities of the divectors for the fineneted report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of Lhe finanecial regport thet gives &
tree and faic view and have delermined that the basis of preparatian deseribed in Note t Lo Lhe
fimancial report is appropriate to meet the requirements of the Corporatens Act oot and is
appropriate to meet the needs of the members. The directors” responsibility afso includes such internal
coritrol as the directors determtine is necessary to eneble the preparvation of the financial reporl that
Eives a true and fzir view and is free from material misstatement, whether dee to fraud ot ercor.

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group ta
conticue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
guing conceen basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidale the Group or Lo cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Aviefiten s respapasiifitios fore the audit of e ficorciof vepo

Ouar objectives are to obtaie reasonable assurance about whether the financeal report 23 a whole is free
from matetial misstaternent, whelher duc to frand or creor, and to istue an auditor's repart that
incledes our opinion. Reasonable asserance iz a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
gudit condneted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstaterent when it exists. bisstatements can srise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in Lhe aggregate, they could reasonably be expected {0 influence the economic
decisinns of users taken on the hasis of the financial repart.

A turther deseription of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is focated at the
Aunditing and Assurance Standards Board website at:




Dtp:/ forww.zuash.gov.anfauditors_responsibilities/arz.pdf. This description forms part of aur
auditor's report.

Svdney
i6 April 2019
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